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Financial Highlights
B FERE

For the year ended 31 December BE+-BA=+—HLEE 2020 2019
(in HK$’000) (F#7) ZEIEFE —T—NE +/(-)
Revenue A 5,650,619 4,925,733 +14.7%
Gross profit EF] 2,337,309 1,944,833 +20.2%
Operating profit KEER 1,067,172 761,626 +40.1%
Profit before income tax BRETIEM AR A 1,052,841 754,673 +39.5%
Profit for the year FEREHF 903,850 624,864 +44.6%
Profit attributable to the owners of KABFB ARG EF

the Company 900,123 623,873 +44.3%
Research and development costs (included in ~ FA3%BEk (AIEEITHRERR)

administrative expenses) (460,772) (398,759) +15.6%
Net impairment losses on financial assets SRS EZREFEE (65,083) (65,914) -1.3%
Share-based payment expenses (included in BHOEZNER (BIEEHEERS

selling and administrative expenses) KT E R (38,805) (38,686) +0.3%

2020 2019
At 31 December (in HK$'000) ®+=ZBA=+—8 (F%m) —EZEE —T—hHE +(-)
Total current assets MENEERE 6,955,116 6,196,703 +12.2%
Total assets BEMRE 7,637,059 6,719,223 +13.7%
Net current assets MEEEFE 5,000,797 4,321,049 +15.7%
Total equity e 48R 5,573,572 4,739,352 +17.6%
EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND
BREBARKE
2020 2019

Per Share (in HK$) =88 GB) —ECEFE _ET—HEHF +(-)
Earnings per share gRET

— Basic —&K 0.828 0.567 +46.0%

— Diluted —#5E 0.823 0.567 +45.1%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share EERESRETERERBERE 0.10 0.06 +66.7%




Financial Highlights
B FERE

FINANCIAL RATIOS

M EER
2020 2019
—TTEF —E-NEF
Gross profit margin ETIES 41.4% 39.5%
Operating profit margin &R 18.9% 15.5%
Net profit margin RIS 16.0% 12.7%
Current ratio TENLEE 3.6 33
Return on equity’ By 16.1% 13.2%
Return on assets? B E D3R 11.8% 9.3%
TURNOVER DAYS
HERH
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Year FE “E-RFE 2—tF 2-N\F T-NF ZBIEE
Inventory? =& 142 138 146 164 183
Trade and bills receivables* BURTR R RE 164 158 155 134 102
Trade and bills payables® ERRNRERNER 152 138 140 158 152
Cash conversion? HEBHe 154 158 161 140 133
Notes M 5E
1 Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 1 EROR=ATRFE ARG, ERE
equity as at year end 48 BB
2 Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 2 BEERK=AQNBFEABERN FXKE
assets as at year end EMRE
3 Inventory turnover days = Average Gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales 3 CEBEAH=THEEARER (FRH
for the year/365 days) EmA& 365H)
4 Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 4 FEWBR AN R FE I R 5B 85 0 8l = F I FEUNER
receivables balance/(Turnover for the year/365 days) AR EREIEEHEE (FREEEE . 365
H)
5 Trade and bills payables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills 5 FENERARERERBESE LM =FHEMER
payables balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 days) MEREWEREE (ERHEMRE, 365
B)
6 Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills 6 HeERHY=-"TFEES0#+BWERA KX

receivables turnover days — Trade and bills payables turnover days

BEREEER-—ENRRRERZEEE
BAH



Bank Gard Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment

iR

TFREFZARZHE

The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in
a typical electronic payment transaction
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Cardholder
FEA

Merchant
5=

(e.g. hotels, restaurants and retailers )

(BB EERTER..)

Card Issuer Acquirers/Commercial Bank
W EE T 2 ERT
(e.g. First Data, Worldpay, HSBC, Citibank)
(B40: First Data, Worldpay, FEZ$R1T, TEHERIT)

Card Association

BRARE

(e.g. Visa/MasterCard/China UnionPay)
(B41Visa/MasterCard/E#REH)

UTEEFMRA—RIBTREFIARZH
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E-payment

PAX

E-payment Terminals

Solutions Provider
« BT {HORIA
FEAER
(e.g. PAX Global)

(BB EIREK)

Terminals Products

BFRfHRIRER

E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals
products and provides related services to commercial bank and
acquirer directly or through distributor.

Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an
E-payment Terminals.

The E-payment Terminals sends transaction data to the acquirer.

The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid
through the network of card association.

The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and
grants authorisation.

The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

ANDROID SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTION (A-SERIES)
REEEBEFZMNBRGTE (ART)

General features:

—RRAFRS

Powered by Android operating system, PCI PTS 5.x certified, the latest certification in the industry.
Compact, portable, equipped with a large high resolution touch screen and inbuilt dual cameras.
Support various kinds of payment options, including bank card payments, Near Field Communication
("NFC") contactless and QR code payments.

Mz S EERRIRIE BRERZMBIPCI PTS 5.xWEEINNIG 5 EFFR BEARASEER/E
B -RBEBEGE IHFIHEIMA GFRIT R NFCIRER R 4B o




Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

ANDROID SMART ELECTRONIC CASH REGISTER SOLUTION (E-SERIES)
REEREEERIARREE (ERT)

General Features:

—ARASRL -

Powered by Android operating system, the all-in-one integrated solution delivers cost efficient and
space saving features to merchants. Certified with PCI PTS 5.x, the latest certification in the industry.
Stylish, large color touch screen, customer-facing display and an inbuilt camera. Support various kinds of
payment options including bank card payments, NFC contactless and QR code payments.

MLz SFERFIREN—RIERRA R FE P EE TEMA - & m¥ER ZE AN &MPCl PTS 5.x58
FEo SNBSS ER R AR BEER BRBEETNETRE NERKRE ZIFR1T R NFCIFET
B A ER A AT e

UNATTENDED SOLUTION (IM SERIES & SK SERIES)
B BIERFE AR RS T IMA S K SKHR )

General features:

—RRATEL

Ideal for self-service sales points such as petrol stations, parking, kiosk. PCI PTS 5.x certified and has met
required standards for anti-vandalism and waterproofing. Various payment methods are accepted and
connectivity options include 3G, 4G, WiFi and Bluetooth.
BARIHLFEIZ -EE=ELEMRAE R BAPCI PTS S.xa058 e B MHKIEE Al ik
BHEUSN ARG 4G WIFIFEF L EEEEE o

UNLEADED PREMIUM
UNLEADED PLUS

UNLEADED




Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

PAXSTORE

PAXSTORE, a cloud-based Software-as-a-Service (“SaaS"”) platform,
connects payment service providers (“PSPs”) and acquiring banks with
application developers and merchants, providing one-stop payment
services and terminal management.

Advanced Terminal Management
Industry-leading terminal management features designed to enable PSPs
and acquiring banks manage payment terminals in real time.

Powerful Payment Services Hub

Rich payment industry value-added tools, deliver payment, business
management and consumer data analysis for merchants across diverse
business segments.

1,900,000+ 4,000+

PAXSTORE

PAXSTOREZ ZiH# (4 B AR #%(SaaS)F & » EiE X
JARFS e - BB ER1T - FE AR mA
PRI IRBE R AL IRERE

TENRIKER
RAEERBRNRIFEERNE > B ARBH
FE 7 A U BB SR 1T 12 4t B RS B 3 S (T AR B AR 755

SAREIZ A ARFE RO
BAESENXNTEEETIR ATEEBH
BREEXM - EBEERHEEHBEINE
AR5 o

1,500+ 80+

Connected Applications Application developers Countries
terminals FEARE FEREXMAEAS EiER
AR
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Corporate Information
~EEH
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~EEH
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Simplified Corporate Chart
YNSES RS

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
(Bermuda)

Pax Technology Limited
(HK)

100%

Wonder Pax
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

100%

Pax Computer
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(PRC)

100%

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(India)

Pax Technology, Inc.

(USA)

Pax Japan
Kabushiki Kaisha

(Japan)

70%

Pax Italia S.r.l.

(1Y)

87%

Kwang Woo
Information &
Communication

Co., Ltd.
(Korea)

HERKBHZARAT —ZT=F

60%

CSC Ralia S.r.l

(ttaly)

FER
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Simplified Corporate Chart
YNSES RS

TERABEAREORAEETBEEBENB LA ARREHR
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100% 100%

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(ENEE)

BEEEN
R BRRAR
(FRED)

Pax Japan

B St
(B%)

5 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

87%

Kwang Woo
Information &

Communication
Co., Ltd

70%

Pax Italia S.r.l.

(vl

60%

CSC Ralia S.r.l

(BAF)




Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREER

As at 29 March 2021, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the directors (the “Director(s)”) and senior
management of PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 58, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the general manager of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Mr. Nie has over 25 years
of experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology
Limited (“Pax Technology”) at its founding in March 2000 as the vice
president until January 2001 and subsequently as the president prior
to his appointment as the chairman in June 2010. Mr. Nie previously
worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of
the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics
and obtained a master’s degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from
Southeast University in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company in December 2010.

LU Jie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for
managing the business development, sales and marketing functions
of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 20 years of experience in sales and
marketing in the electronic payment industry and served a number of
management positions and executive role at Beijing Order Computer
Company (“Beijing Order”), a system integration company, from
1998 to 2001, including general manager of insurance department,
general manager of marketing department and vice president. He had
also worked as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral
Resources of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences
from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively. Mr. Lu holds
a bachelor’'s degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company in
May 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREER

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the Company and a director
in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for the
Company'’s risk management and treasury management and overseeing
operations of Pax Technology, of which he has been serving a director
since April 2000. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi Sun Information
Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL”) from August 1997 to May
2005, a Hong Kong company engaging in general trading and provision
of consultancy services. HSITSL provided consultancy services to Pax
Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li is also the managing director
of Hi Sun Limited since August 1999 and an executive director of Hi
Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company, since June 2001. He has also been appointed as an
executive director of both Hi Sun Limited and Hi Sun and certain of
their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong, including Beijing
Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for investment and
administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in laws from the
Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
independent non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (EBEEIIZERR B R/AE)), Far East Horizon Limited G2 R A 1E
BR/AT), Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (fRF 3215 £ [ f%
AABEMRAT), Yida China Holdings Limited (fEZE T EIERERAT),
Huobi Technology Holdings Limited (K %% 2 B PR/AB)) and Peijia
Medical Limited Gz % %¢B BRAE)), all of which are companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Yip graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in social sciences in 1987. He also holds a bachelor's degree
in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an
assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr.
Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards.
Her academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media, including the
Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc.
Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting firms and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in conducting research in the
areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US listed companies.
She also provides professional interpretation and analysis services for
investment funds on accounting standards and on listed companies’
financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from Peking University with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994 and obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in Accounting
from Stern School of Business, New York University in 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREER

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981.
Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has
practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as
Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 52, is the executive vice president and chairman of
Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible for the research and
development management of the Company’s smart electronic payment
point-of-sale terminals (“E-payment Terminals”) products and supply
chain business (procurement production, quality management and
information technology) and oversees the finance of the operations in
Shenzhen. Mr. Luo graduated from Wuhan University with a bachelor’s
degree in economic management. Mr. Luo has over 20 years of
experience in the card payment industry and over 15 years of experience
in financial administration and supply chain management. He joined
Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as the chief financial
officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served various management
positions in Beijing Order and Beijing Hi Sun Electric Power Information
Technology Limited.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary(ies)”).
He joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration and has over 10 years of financial and accounting related
experience. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung
worked for an international public accountancy firm and was involved
in a number of audit and assurance, capital market transaction and
advisory projects advising corporate clients including listed companies
and conglomerates worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX" or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group's turnover, profit for the year,
profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company and the
proposed final dividend have achieved record highs.

The Group's turnover amounted to HK$5,650.6 million in 2020,
representing an increase of 14.7% compared to HK$4,925.7 million
in 2019. The growth was mainly contributed by the huge increase of
17.6% in overseas markets. All regional overseas business recorded
growth, especially in the Latin America Region (“LACIS"), the United
State & Canada Region (“USCA") and Europe, Middle East and Africa
Region (“EMEA"). The proportion of the total revenue of the overseas
markets over the Group’s total was 94.3%, as compared to 91.9% in
the corresponding period last year.

In 2020, profit for the year was HK$903.9 million, representing an
increase of 44.6% compared to HK$624.9 million in 2019. Profit for the
year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$900.1 million,
representing an increase of 44.3% as compared to HK$623.9 million in
2019. Basic earnings per share for the year was 82.8 HK cents (2019:
56.7 HK cents).

In celebration of PAX's tenth anniversary of listing, the Group declared
a special dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share on 18 December 2020
and paid to the shareholders of the Company on 22 January 2021.

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.10
per ordinary share (2019: HK$0.06) for the year ended 31 December
2020, amounting to a total of approximately HK$109,414,000 (2019:
HK$65,256,000) (assuming no change in the number of shares in issue
on or before the record date for determining the entitlement of final
dividend) subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

OUTLOOK

With the rapid evolution of financial technology, electronic payment
plays an important role in facilitating the advancement of smart cities
and emerging market communities. It not only improves the efficiency
of economic activities, but also provides a solid foundation for industrial
innovation. Governments are encouraging the development of
electronic payment infrastructures worldwide.

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused people to adopt new
lifestyles in social and consumer habits. E-commerce and electronic
payments are thriving thanks to the emergence of many innovative
application services, which is fueling the shift towards cashless societies.
Consumers today are also more concerned about the perceived health
risks associated with handling physical cash, which further reinforces the
wide adoption of electronic payments.

PAX's technological competitive advantages have been even more
accentuated in amid of COVID-19 pandemic, with the surging demand
for PAX's Android payment terminal products. The Group’s new
generation of Android payment terminal solutions is connected to the
cloud-based platform PAXSTORE, providing merchants with business
intelligence and digital marketing applications, as well as helping
acquiring banks and payment service providers to better manage
payment terminal estates in real-time and delivering better payment
service experience.

In 2020, PAX continued to demonstrate its leading competence and
business resilience even in such adverse times, with spectacular sales
successes worldwide and further reinforcement of the PAX brand
recognition, positioning the Group as one of the world’s leading
E-payment terminal solution providers. In 2020, significant revenue
growth of 17.6% was achieved in overseas markets with a record high
shipment of over 10 million units. Overseas markets are now the pillar
of our Group’s business, accounting for approximately 94.3% of total
revenue.
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During the year, PAX continued to achieve major breakthroughs globally.
In LACIS, the Group continued to strengthen its market-leading position.
Thanks to the expanding fintech sector in Brazil as well as the PAX's
advanced product portfolio, the Group achieved even more strategic
partnerships.

In Europe, strong demand for Android terminals contributed to
significant sales growth in Italy and Eastern Europe. Other markets such
as the United Kingdom (“UK"), Scandinavia, Spain, France and Turkey
have also begun accelerating the deployment of PAX Android terminals.
In the Middle East and Africa, PAX achieved significant growth in Egypt,
Nigeria, Saudi Arabia, as well as other Gulf Cooperating Council (GCC)
countries.

In the Asia-Pacific region (“APAC"), there is a strong growing demand
for the Group’s full range of Android payment products. In India, PAX
strengthened partnerships with leading financial institutions, further
gaining more market shares. In Japan, there was significant deployment
of our payment terminals in convenience stores, stadiums and theme
parks as well as financial institutions.

In the USCA, in addition to the growing revenue contribution from
PSPs and independent sale organisation (“ISOs”), PAX solutions are
now being deployed by more top US retail and quick-service restaurant
chains. During the year, the Group’s Android smart products won the
“Visa U.S. Compliance Contactless Payment Terminal Program Award
2020", greatly enhancing the PAX brand recognition.

In China, the Group continued to optimize resources and focus on
serving reputable and financially solid clients. During the year, PAX
achieved improved gross profit margin in China. As financial technology
evolves in China, electronic payment application scenarios have become
more diversified and demand is rising for Android smart terminal
solutions.

Looking to the future, we expect to see continued strong market
demand for our payment terminals, as consumers’ payment habits
have already experienced radical shift towards electronic transactions
and merchants are speeding up the adoption of new-generation
Android payment terminals. PAX adheres to a corporate culture of
pursuing excellence and innovation, in our quest to roll out an industry-
leading E-payment terminal solutions roadmap, while at the same time
strengthening cooperation with our channel partners and the payment
service providers, acquirers and merchants globally. PAX is very well
prepared to embrace the vast opportunities in a post COVID-19 world.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all our employees for their commitment and dedication
during the COVID-19 pandemic. In the face of such challenges,
our people maintained incredibly high levels of enthusiasm and
professionalism, conducting business in flexible ways and maintaining
close relationships with our clients around the world.

| would like to thank our customers, suppliers, business partners and

shareholders, as well as our directors and management team for their
unrelenting dedication and valuable contributions in 2020.

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B4 75 O] B8

The key financial figures are extracted as follows: B BHRBREROT

For the year ended 31 December
BHE+"A=+—HLEHE
2020 2019
—EBITF “ZT—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET +/(-)
Revenue ON 5,650,619 4,925,733 +14.7%
Gross profit EF 2,337,309 1,944,833 +20.2%
Other income Ha A 77,838 79,056 -1.5%
Selling expenses HEMRS (499,321)  (465,657) +7.2%
Administrative expenses THER (781,456)  (743,466) +5.1%
Net impairment losses on financial assets ERIEEZREFEE (65,083) (65,914) -1.3%
Profit before income tax PRPTSM AR H 1,052,841 754,673 +39.5%
Income tax expense Frigfsz (148,991)  (129,809) +14.8%
Profit for the year FEmA 903,850 624,864 +44.6%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company Z&ABEFAE AEEEF 900,123 623,873 +44.3%
Research and development costs (included in e (BEETH
administrative expenses) BREW) (460,772) (398,759) +15.6%
Share-based payment expenses (included in RirZNER (B1ET
selling and administrative expenses) HERY RITHERAMN) (38,805) (38,686) +0.3%
As at 31 December
®W+=ZA=+—H

2020 2019

—EISE —T—hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET +(-)
Total current assets MENEEMLE 6,955,116 6,196,703 +12.2%
Total non-current assets ERBEEREE 681,943 522,520 +30.5%
Total assets BEEMBE 7,637,059 6,719,223 +13.7%
Total current liabilities BB EAEEE 1,954,319 1,875,654 +4.2%
Total non-current liabilities QF/ﬁ@J%FMéE 109,168 104,217 +4.8%
Total liabilities &M 2,063,487 1,979,871 +4.2%
Net current assets RED éﬁ@@ 5,000,797 4,321,049 +15.7%
Total equity e 4B R 5,573,572 4,739,352 +17.6%
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
ZEIEF —T—NE +/(-)
PER SHARE (IN HK$) i (Bm)
Earnings per share for the profit attributable EN/NCIESTE DN 3
to the owners of the Company AN EREF]
— Basic —EK 0.828 0.567 +46.0%
— Diluted —#E 0.823 0.567 +45.1%
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=1+—HILEE
2020 2019
ZEZTEF —E-hEF
FINANCIAL RATIOS BAFSLE =R
Gross profit margin EF=E 41.4% 39.5%
Net profit margin R 16.0% 12.7%

Revenue

Turnover increased by 14.7% or HK$724.9 million to HK$5,650.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from HK$4,925.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 mainly due to the increase in

turnover generated from overseas markets.

i)  Sales by Geographical Region
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w1 iR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECITE —ZT—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET +(-)
Overseas markets BN
— Latin America and the Commonwealth — —H#I T EMNFIB I EEFEZR
of Independent States (“LACIS") (FLACISJ) 2,723,604 2,514,700 +8.3%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa BUMN ~ PR K2 JEM (TEMEA 1)
("EMEA") 1,268,916 927,562 +36.8%
— Asia Pacific Region —BRKE FRAPBEAKESN
(Except for Mainland China) (“APAC") (TAPAC 1) 826,313 740,373 +11.6%
— United States of America and —EZFHEMEK
Canada (“USCA") (Tuscay) 508,346 345,974 +46.9%
5,327,179 4,528,609 +17.6%
China Market FREIT 5 323,440 397,124 -18.6%
Total 48%8 5,650,619 4,925,733 +14.7%

Turnover generated from overseas markets increased by 17.6%
to HK$5,327.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
from HK$4,528.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Turnover generated from overseas markets accounted for 94.3%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020, growing
from 91.9% for the year ended 31 December 2019. All overseas
business units recorded growth, especially the EMEA, LACIS and
USCA regions. The increase was mainly driven by the increase
in market penetration and sales of Android terminals. Turnover
generated from the China Market decreased by 18.6% to
HK$323.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, from
HK$397.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to the continuously keen competition.
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i)

w1 iR

Sales by Product Category

ii))

REmMDANHELE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019

—ECE T —NF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT +/(-)
E-payment Terminals products BT A INE S 5,532,211 4,837,042 +14.4%
Services AR 7% 118,408 88,691 +33.5%
Total HERE 5,650,619 4,925,733 +14.7%

E-payment Terminals products Bt IRER

E-payment Terminals products include smart E-payment Terminals,
all-in-one smart electronic cash register solution, traditional
E-payment Terminals, mobile E-payment Terminals, QR code
E-payment Terminals and other accessory items.

Turnover from the sales of E-payment Terminals products increased
by 14.4% to HK$5,532.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from HK$4,837.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The growth is attributed to the increase in sales in the
overseas markets during the year.

Services

Services income includes the income generated from the provision
of maintenance and installation services in Italy and Hong Kong
and payment solutions services, e.g. platform solutions services
and other software value-added services.

Turnover from services increased by 33.5% to HK$118.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from HK$88.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in services
income was mainly driven by the growth in payment solutions
services.
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Gross Profit Margin
Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2020 was 41.4%,
representing an increase of 190 basis points as compared to 39.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly driven by
the change in sales mix.

Other Income

Other income comprises primarily, interest income from time deposit,
subsidy income and value-added tax refund. It decreased slightly by
1.5% to HK$77.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
HK$79.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, due to the
decrease in the service income from a joint venture.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 7.2% to HK$499.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from HK$465.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Selling expenses grew generally in line with the
turnover growth.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 5.1% to HK$781.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from HK$743.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in research and development (“R&D") expenses.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group has recognised a provision for net impairment of receivables
of HK$65.1 million and HK$65.9 million for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 respectively. The amount recognised during
the year consisted of the provision for the expected credit losses on
collective basis of HK$14.2 million and on individual basis of HK$50.9
million mainly related to the trade receivables of customers in the
USCA region. Detail is set out in Note 3.1(b)(ii) and Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to the Owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year was HK$903.9 million,
representing an increase of 44.6% compared to HK$624.9 million in
2019. In 2020, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company was HK$900.1 million, representing an increase of 44.3% as
compared to HK$623.9 million in 2019.
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Other Event

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2017 and the relevant disclosure in the Company’s 2017
annual report concerning Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology
Company Limited (“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’s Republic of China. As at 31 December 2020, the
liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo was still underway. Should
Shanghai Kashuo liquidate, the Group is expected to recognise a
potential gain of up to approximately HK$60 million in reversal of its
existing liabilities.

OVERVIEW

Market Analysis and Industry Trends

In 2020, the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic brought
unprecedented shock to every country on the planet. The economic
environment and consumption patterns have transpired into a “new
normal”, resulting in a radical reshaping of the traditional payment
market. As countries implemented stringent pandemic control and
prevention measures, people drastically reduced the use of physical
cash. Contactless payment quickly became the preferred payment
transaction method of consumers. Governments’ uplift of transaction
limits for contactless payment has further accelerated customers’ shift
from using cash to electronic payment methods such as NFC-enabled
bank card or QR (Quick Response) code payment. Contactless payments
have become an irreversible trend.

Riding on the rapid development of the global E-payment terminals
industry, the Group continues to strengthen closer partnerships with
acquiring banks and payment service providers around the world.
Leveraging on our extensive sales network and excellent payment
products, the Group has seized the development opportunities and
achieved a new high in results performance. In 2020, the Group
achieved a record high revenue of HK$5,650.6 million, representing
a year-on-year growth of 14.7%. Revenue from overseas markets
accounted for over 90% of the total revenue of the Group. In the face
of the challenges posed by the pandemic, PAX demonstrated strong
enterprise-wide resilience and business competence, achieving a 44.6%
growth of net profit for the year.
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As a pioneer of the E-payment terminal industry, PAX succeeded in
turning the challenging year of 2020 into a surging growth opportunity.
Over the past few years, the Group has been strategically sowing the
seeds of product innovation, cultivating a new generation of payment
terminal solutions. PAX's full range of Android SmartPOS, SmartECR,
SmartKiosk models and unattended solutions, caters to the diverse
needs of integrated multilane retailers (supermarkets and chain stores),
SMB merchants (Small & Medium-sized Businesses) and the self-service
sector. PAX's all-in-one Android solutions enable merchants to analyse
customer behaviours, create automated marketing campaigns, manage
inventory, etc., hence strengthen their operational management and
marketing efficiency. Through PAXSTORE, payment service providers
are empowered to manage the terminal estate in real-time and deliver
new value-added application services to merchants. In the second half
of 2020, sales of Android terminal solutions increased substantially
compared to the first half of the year. Android solutions accounted for
over 30% of the Group's total revenue in 2020.

PAXSTORE has become a boosting force in driving the roadmap of
PAX's smart payment terminal products portfolio. Today, PAXSTORE
is running in more than 80 countries with close to 2 million devices
connected, providing merchants with over 4,000 innovative value-added
applications, covering payment, food ordering, ticketing, loyalty reward
schemes, inventory control, marketing, tax refund, etc. PAXSTORE
can also connect to other branded Android terminals, as well as non-
Android terminals in the near future.
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Overseas markets

LACIS

In Latin America and the CIS countries (the latter including Russia and
the Commonwealth of Independent States), Brazil continued to be the
key market for PAX. During the year, Brazil's fintech maintained robust
growth, generating strong market demand for new-generation Android
smart payment terminals. Driven by multiple strategic partnerships and
the rich diversity of the Android product line, PAX continued to uphold
its leading position as the E-payment terminal brand of choice in Brazil.
PAX's Android smart terminals enable merchants to operate the business
and manage payments in a smarter and more efficient manner, as well
as perfectly integrate diverse business applications of merchants. These
advantages are gaining market traction. During the year, sales of the
Android POS A50 and A930 recorded substantial growth.

The Group continued to expand its presence in other markets and
further deployed PAX terminals in Russia, Argentina and Mexico. In
Ukraine, the largest acquirer has partnered with the Group to launch
a facial recognition payment service, using the PAX A930 Android
terminal for authentication and allow customers to pay in-store without
having to bring cash, bank card or smartphone.

EMEA

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa, the Group achieved a robust
sales growth of 36.8% year-on-year, primarily due to the up-take of PAX
Android smart solutions by a growing base of payment service providers
and acquiring banks.

Since March 2020, a number of European countries have successively
raised the transaction limits for contactless payment in response to the
changing consumer payment habits during the pandemic. In Europe,
strong demand for Android terminals contributed to significant sales
growth in Italy and Eastern Europe. Other markets such as the UK,
Scandinavia, Spain, France and Turkey have also begun accelerating the
deployment of Android terminals.

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, PAX partnered with a British
retail solution software company to carry out contact tracing of in-store
customers through PAX Android terminals, in compliance with the NHS
(National Health Service) Test and Trace program.

In the Middle East and Africa, PAX achieved significant growth in
shipments to Egypt, Nigeria, Saudi Arabia, as well as other Gulf
Cooperating Council (GCC) countries, in light of the growing trend of
customers shifting towards PAX's Android payment solutions. In the
second half of 2020, the Group increased its exposure in the South
African market and being designated as a new supplier to a majority of
the country’s large acquiring banks.
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APAC

In the Asia-Pacific region, the promotion of cashless initiatives by
various governments, coupled with the increasingly advanced electronic
payment systems in emerging markets, have fostered the continuous
growth of electronic payment users. In 2020, the pandemic has further
driven the adoption of smart payment terminals that support contactless
payment technology and value-added applications in the retail and
catering industries across the Asia Pacific.

As one of the Android product suppliers to mainstream acquiring
banks and institutions in Asia Pacific countries, the Group has achieved
breakthroughs in multiple markets. In India, there is a growing
demand for the Group's full range of Android payment products.
PAX strengthened its partnerships with leading banks and financial
institutions and further gained a larger market share. In Japan, PAX
deployed payment terminals for chain convenience stores, theme parks,
as well as financial institutions.

In Southeast Asia, where E-payment is flourishing, PAX will continue
to seize the huge growth potential and partner with leading acquiring
banks and payment service providers to accelerate the roll-out of
smart Android payment solutions in countries such as Indonesia, the
Philippines, Malaysia, Thailand and Vietnam.

USCA

In the United States and Canada, more payment service providers
(“PSPs”) shifted to PAX’s terminal solutions, driving a revenue growth
of 46.9% in 2020. The Group entered into strategic cooperation with
major payment processing companies in the United States and deployed
more innovative Android terminals through its nationwide network of
Independent Sales Organizations (“ISOs”). In 2020, the sales of PAX's
flagship Android A920 more than doubled when compared to 2019. In
addition to the growing revenue contribution from PSPs and ISOs, PAX
solutions are now being deployed by more top U.S. retail and quick-
service restaurant chains. The Group partnered with a U.S. payment
service provider, to comply with the April 2021 mandate that payment
terminals at gas stations shall be upgraded to accept EMV payments,
driving further sales growth for PAX's unattended product line.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, PAX partnered with AxiaMed,
an industry leader in healthcare payment technology, to provide
healthcare institutions with NFC contactless-enabled Android payment
terminal solutions, handling patient payment in a more hygienic and
convenient way.
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China market

In 2020, the Group continued to optimize resources and focus on
serving reputable and financially solid clients, resulted in an improved
gross profit margin of its China business. As financial technology evolves
in China, electronic payment application scenarios are becoming more
diversified and the market has an eager demand for Android smart
terminal solutions. PAX will continue to strengthen cooperation with
reputable acquiring banks and payment service providers in China to
accelerate the deployment of PAX's Android series.

Management strategy

Focus on R&D to develop innovative and diversified

terminals and software solutions

PAX adheres to a corporate culture of “pursuing excellence and
innovation” with a focus on smart terminals and software solutions.
The flagship SmartPOS, SmartECR and SmartKiosk series are attracting
prominent interest globally and expected to become the Group’s main
growth engine going forward.

In face of the challenges of the pandemic, whether large-scale chain
retailers or small and medium-sized businesses, will accelerate to
embrace new technologies and adopt business digitization to keep up
with market developments. Through PAXSTORE, our all-in-one solutions
can fulfill market demand and provide value-added services.

The Group will continue to keep up with the pace of technological
development, strengthening investment in research and development
of innovative solutions, upgrading Android payment products whilst
continuously enhancing the PAXSTORE platform.
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Strengthen PAX'’s global sales network to enhance its

leading international position

PAX will capitalise on its global reach advantage to strengthen closer
partnerships with channel partners, acquiring banks, payment service
providers and merchants to expand our market share and explore
potential new markets. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to explore
merger and acquisition opportunities and other investment projects
which offer good prospects in the payment sector. With a view to
further capturing global market share and enhancing its leading
international position, the Group will continue to expand diversified
solutions and innovative payment-related technologies.

Monitor the situation of COVID-19 and grasp the

opportunities of accelerated cashless adoption

Despite the multiple waves of COVID-19 outbreaks which severely
impacted the global economy and people’s daily livelihood in 2020, PAX
management is convinced that as the world accelerates the launch of
vaccination programs, economic activity across countries will gradually
recover. PAX's solid business foundation and capital structure, as well as
innovative product portfolio and loyal customer base, have empowered
the Group with sufficient resilience to cope with challenges brought by
the pandemic.

The Group’s supply chains experienced a temporary interruption
at the beginning of the COVID-19 outbreak, outsourced assembly
lines for our products resumed full capacity shortly and production
activity throughout the year progressed as planned. The Group
has implemented efficient social distancing measures in our
offices worldwide and a flexible work from home policy. Customer
communication was effectively maintained through various virtual
platforms. The Group will closely monitor the market conditions and
continue to assess the impact of the outbreak on PAX's operations and
financial performance.

Under the pandemic, the global electronic payment market is
skyrocketing as customers have accelerated to adopt contactless
electronic payments. We are expecting acquiring banks and payment
service providers globally to gear up for the recovery of the retail
and catering markets. PAX's payment terminals can support mobile
payments such as NFC contactless and QR code, bringing consumers
and merchants a more secure and convenient payment experience.
Leveraging on our diversified solutions portfolio and extensive global
sales network, PAX is poised to embrace the huge market opportunities
presented by the increasingly cashless world.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the years of 2020 and 2019, the main source of funding to
the Group was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the
Group's usual course of business. Certain financial data is summarised
as follows:

RBBEERMBER
RIZFER-_ZB-NAFE FAEENTE

TRBH/EEE-—RBEIHPEE Fﬁéi
BYWA - BT MBI T

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2020 2019
—EEF ZE-NEF
Current ratio (times) TMENELE (%) 3.6 3.3
Quick ratio (times) EEEEE (%) 2.7 2.6

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and short-term bank deposits in an aggregate amount of HK$3,805.8
million (2019: HK$3,233.0 million) and no borrowings (2019: HK$2.3
million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported net current
assets of HK$5,000.8 million, as compared with HK$4,321.0 million as
at 31 December 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2020, net cash
generated from operating activities was HK$735.0 million, as compared
with HK$1,206.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had no borrowings and the gearing ratio is
not applicable (2019: 0.05%). The gearing ratio is considered healthy
and suitable for the continuous growth of the Group's business.

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no borrowings (2019: HK$2.3
million) and no banking facilities (2019: same). As at 31 December
2019, the borrowings were used in the operation in Korea and
denominated in Korean Won and all borrowings were unsecured. There
was no charge on any assets of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

RIBZEER-Z-AF+"RB=+—8"
FEERNREARREEEBYHHIUTIER
HIME :

As at 31 December

®W+=ZA=+—H
zozo 2019
—_ 7 —_= ﬂE _j—l..E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 2,529,613 2,095,391
US dollar (“US$") ET 884,286 973,745
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") BT 223,603 34,418
European dollar (“EUR") Bl 111,167 72,968
Indian Rupee (“INR") ELt 25,602 23,687
Others Hth 28,470 29,796
3,802,741 3,230,005

Significant Investment
The Group had no significant investment as at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets
There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its turnover, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR. The majority of
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR
and there are no significant assets and liabilities that are denominated in
other currencies. Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements
or purchased instruments to hedge the Group's exchange rate risks. Any
material fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

The management considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect
to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same
functional currency. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies
The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2020
was 1,677. The following table shows a breakdown of employees of the

HAREE
AERR_F_SF+_RB=+—HLEE
FERHAREBRE (CE-—NE H) -

ANTE R R G BB ER
RIE_EEFE+_B=+—H xEHREREHE
HAB167TAN  TREIWN _E_FEF+_H

Group by functions as at 31 December 2020: —t+—HIREREIONSHEEHE !
Management EIEEB 12
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HERERRBUSRTIGHEE 384
Research and development bt 3 817
Quality assurance T 81
Administration and human resources TERAIIEIR 55
Accounting = 36
Production, procurement and inventory control TE -ZREREFEET 292
1,677

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive
and competitive from time to time. Employees are remunerated with a
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. Share
options are granted to certain employees of the Group to reward their
contributions under share option schemes, details of which are set
out in the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of the
Group's business.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures are
used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP measures are
not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative to operating
income as an indicator of the operating performance of the Group or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the overall
understanding of the Group current financial performance. Additionally because
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the
Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our
financial reporting.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency
and accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices,
the Company has applied the Principles and complied with all applicable
Code Provisions for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance manual to ensure
that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure requirements.
Directors and senior management are provided with appropriate
ongoing training, continuing professional development for regular
updates of the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to their
duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating the securities
transaction of Directors and executive officers named in this annual
report (“Securities Transaction Code"”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors, whereas each of them
has confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and Securities Transaction Code throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report.
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The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code regulating the Directors, senior
management and employees, who because of his/her office or
employment is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, in respect of their transactions of securities of
the Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters which
include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary(ies), with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as
to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were
given to the senior management and subject to periodic review to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material transactions
and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.
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Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members, as equal board members, upholds the effective exercise of
independent judgment of the Board.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

An updated list of Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's
websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
between the members of the Board, in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive, if any, are provided in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures, subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at annual general
meeting and the key terms and conditions of their appointment are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 23 May 2019
for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li
Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the respective service contracts.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
Group's various governance and internal control policies. The Company
also, at its expense, arranges and provides suitable training, placing
an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors
in the form of physical seminar and provision of training materials. A
summary of training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2020 according to the records as provided by the Directors is
as follows:

Name of Directors

EEE
MEEEENELZAERESLBNE BERRK
BETHRARRDEFRER RE2E T HHER
BRER - RERZRURATEBRZERELGR
NBEZERRTHBE LN xRTTEE
MLETRBDEENAC - PEABENERN
RH R B BEHE -

ARBEBBEREFTSREATEE R UHE
BRREMEENNHRKE FRABDECERR
TEENMNEREHEBIENRSESZHR
EYRSEI - RESEFRENCE EFN
BE_Z_EFT_A=+—HLFEER
ARG R T -

Training on
regulatory updates,
corporate governance,
inside information or
other relevant topics

HEHREM EES
NEHE®
BEEg Hth48R8 £ @53
Executive Directors HITES
Nie Guoming =B 4
Lu Jie E AN v
Li Wenijin FTEXE 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIJERITES
Yip Wai Ming =2 v
Wu Min 2 8 v
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X 21 v

During the year, the Company Secretaries received no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Group against losses or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from
or incidental to execution of their duties. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as deemed appropriate by
the Board.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, four regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for, among others, reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, the final results for the year ended
31 December 2019, results for the three months ended 31 March 2020,
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and results for
the nine months ended 30 September 2020, and considering, reviewing
and/or approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc Board meetings held
from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board
in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings and general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EFXTERREFLERR
FRANESTEBRTHOREREFETTH
W (HpaE) SERAMEMBREERER &
BE_ZT-AF+A=+t—HLFENZE
FEB BE_T_TFE=-A=+—HIL=A
BNER - B#E_T_TFAB=+HLXAE
BT HEERBE_ZT_ZTFAB=1+H
EAEANES UREE - BHKRHLE
2N ) BB RBS K BUR o

BREERNBE_ZT_TF+_A=+—HL
FEHEONEERZEEEFEER (FTEEH
fth B ER1T E’JT;EHH%$EED%&$EB‘E¢¥
EATANESEHNENENAEMEER)
EEEERRRARGHHFELERIIINT 2

Attendance/Number of Meetings”

SRR/ BORE

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting
BRZEE RRZEE FWZEE ERESE
Name of Directors EEe i L] ] EER BEXE
Nie Guoming =EHR NATRER  NATBRE  NAFRBER 444 11
Lu Jie BEA NATRER  NATEBR  NATER 4/4 17
Li Wenjin FNE N/A B F 1/1 11 444 11
Yip Wai Ming ERH 22 111 0 4/4 101
Wu Min B8 212 11 il 4/4 1”71
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles XElfE 22 NATBER  NATER 4/4 17
o Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through other £ iR ?J%ZIK’Aj E'J’&j Al (Tr=E4HEa))) »ES
means of video conference in accordance with the Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) ORE - EEBEENEMEREZFIALRE
of the Company. Biko

* Pursuant to the Bye-laws, not all Directors were required to attend the
rest of the Board meetings which mainly dealt with the consideration and
approval of ordinary business transactions.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the

independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at
least fourteen days in advance and relevant agenda and accompanying
board papers have been disseminated in full to the Directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Reasonable notice, as permitted
by the Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed, has
been given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary(ies), as delegated by the Chairman, are
responsible for preparing the agendas of board meetings, taking into
account any matters the Directors may propose to include, ensuring that
all Directors are given opportunity to include matters in the agendas
and approving the agendas. In order to enable the Directors to make
informed decision, agendas and accompanying board papers, together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors or all committees members at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised
of the latest developments and/or financial position of the Company.
The Board and the individual Directors also have independent access to
the senior management to make further enquires or when they require
further information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior
management.

The Company Secretary(ies) attended all regular Board meetings and,
when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on,
among others, statutory compliance, corporate governance matters and
to ensure that the Company’s policies and procedures were properly
followed.

The Company Secretary(ies) is responsible for preparing and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
recorded sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed, if any. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting. The final version
is kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting, at
which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest
in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any of their close
associates having material interests in the transaction or matter shall
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving such transactions.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and responsibilities of Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie
respectively as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the “CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The
clear division of the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of business ensures a balanced power and authority such
that no concentration of power should vest in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the
assistance and support of the Company Secretary(ies) and the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive in a timely manner adequate information, which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board'’s affairs, taking the lead to assure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman also
promotes a culture to facilitate effective contribution and encourages
the Directors to express dissenting views and concerns and allow
sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also responsible for
developing strategic plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation
in board meetings, offer independent judgment on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining the
Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
and monitoring performance reporting, the independent non-executive
Directors has become an integral part of the healthy growth of the
Company.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors also attended
the annual general meeting of the Company, details of which are set
out on page 31, enabling them to develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, was appointed
for a contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly
basis and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws. Such term shall
be terminated: (i) by either party giving the other not less than two
months’ written notice; (i) forthwith without compensation, on ground
of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or negligence of such
Director, or (iii) any failure of passing a resolution by the shareholders to
be re-elected as a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors, representing half of the Board and with
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive Directors are considered independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Each Board committee was established with defined written terms
of reference setting out its authorities and duties and requiring the
Board Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by applicable legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms
of reference of the Board committees are made available on the
Company's and the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of the
same are available to the shareholders upon request.

Each Board committee consists of a majority of independent non-
executive Directors and is respectively chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. Chairman and members of each Board committee as
at the date of this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

SMAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
SWU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
SWU Min

*LI Wenjin

A Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including at least one member possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others, the
followings:

(@  toreview the financial statements, reports, accounting policies and
practices and consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
with reference to its work performed, fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and, if appropriate, removal of
external auditor;

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems, including
but not limited to adequacy of resources available to its respective
functions, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes; and

(d) to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider
effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis
and emergency situations and approve major decisions affecting
the Group's risk profile or exposure.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted in accordance with
the CG Code, the "Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role
of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization of
Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020 to review the half-yearly and annual financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, the auditor’s independence and objectivity. Full minutes of the
meetings are duly kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and draft and
final versions of the same have been sent to all committee members for
comment and records, within reasonable time afterwards in accordance
with the relevant Code Provisions. The Audit Committee also met with
the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, twice during the
year and recommended its re-appointment as the Company’s external
auditor to the Board, which has taken no different view in respect of the
Audit Committee’s recommendation.
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At the end of 2020 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 and comprises two independent non-executive
Directors (one of whom being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and one executive Director. Its terms of reference was
prepared and adopted with reference to the CG Code and its principal
duties include, among others, the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships based on the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business requirements of
the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment agency may also be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process when necessary. It has been an
underpinning philosophy of the Company to maintain diversified
selection criteria in its hiring process, taking into account a wide range
of attributes including age, educational background, professional
experience, industry skills, expertise and experience and such policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) was reduced to writing in 2014. To facilitate
sustainable and balanced development of the Company, the Nomination
Committee regularly reviews the Board Diversity Policy from nomination
level to appointment, with a view to achieve a diversified spectrum
of Directors with varying perspectives, educational background and
expertise, ranging from in-depth knowhow in the payment industry,
sales and marketing talents to professional qualifications in the legal
and accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in
his respective field of expertise for at least 10 to 30 years. Regardless
of their background or experience, the Directors commonly share and
acquire the talent and competence to drive the development of the
industry, being the ultimate attributes that the Nomination Committee
will uphold and carry through in the talent selection process.

Appointment of Directors is based on objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board, and decisions of the
Nomination Committee are based on the merits and contribution of the
selected candidates.
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The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure
of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter
alia, his/her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant industry experience, character and integrity and whether he/
she can contribute to the diversity of the Board underpinned in the
Board Diversity Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a
Director is summarised as follows:—

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member
of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board's consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant Code
Provisions and the Listing Rules;

- where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of matters
under Code Provision A.5.5;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing
the candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

- convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or
re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) consider and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment and re-election
of the retiring Directors and (iv) review and recommend the continuing
adoption of the Board Diversity Policy.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Mr. Lu Jie, the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director, and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, an independent
non-executive Director, shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “"AGM"). According to Code Provision A.4.3, any
further appointment of independent non-executive director serving
more than 9 years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. As Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles has served
the Company as an independent non-executive Director for more than
9 years, a separate resolution shall be proposed for his re-election at the
AGM.

Upon the annual review of the Board’s composition taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee formed the view
that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company and the
independent non-executive Directors remain independent. Taking into
account the aforesaid and each of the retiring Directors’ confirmation
to give sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs
subsequent to the re-appointment, the Nomination Committee made
a recommendation to the Board for considering the standing for re-
election at the AGM of the aforesaid retiring Directors, namely Mr. Lu Jie
and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles. The Board, taking into account the
recommendation and other factors as considered relevant, has decided
to further recommend Mr. Lu Jie and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles to
stand for re-election at the AGM.

The Company's circular to be dispatched in April 2021 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. Its terms of reference was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and its primary objectives and duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure, remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
is determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group's
corporate goals and objectives.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters, including without limitation
the compensation arrangements relating to their termination and
dismissal. The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and proposing the
remuneration structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consider and consult the Chairman
and/or the Board about these proposals. The Remuneration Committee
held one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020 to review
and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, to establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy and to assess the performance of the
executive Directors and approve the terms of their respective service
contracts.

The remuneration payable to the members of senior management,
including any share-based payment expenses, by band for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 and Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which includes, among others, formulating and reviewing the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management, the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, formulating
and reviewing the code of conduct, guidelines and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors, monitoring their compliance of
the same and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
relevant disclosure obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 68 to 77.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board as a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group's internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and acknowledges its overall responsibility for
reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and assets of the Group. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least
annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes, budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions and is kept apprised of
significant risks that may impact the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-
up approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee identifies
the risks of the Group and decides on the respective risk levels and the
Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the risks that
are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic objectives.
Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the necessary risk
mitigating measures, the relevant departments and business units shall
be assigned to implement the risk management solutions in accordance
with their respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risk
together with the risk response will be recorded at the risk register and
subject to the Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of
risks, the development and continuous update of responsive procedures,
and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. Risks are classified by (i) likelihood of
occurrence as Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3) and (ii) resulting
impact as Minor (1), Moderate (2) and Significant (3). The risk degrees
determine the level of management'’s attention and risk treatment effort
required.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, the Board
considers that the internal audit function would be executed most cost-
effectively through designated internal audit personnel (“IA Personnel”)
working with and as assisted by an independent consulting firm (the
“Internal Control Auditor”) to conduct semi-annual review of the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems.

During the year, the Internal Control Auditor conducted semi-annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the scope of review agreed and
approved by the IA Personnel and requirements under Code Provision
C.2 of the CG Code. The Internal Control Auditor reported to and made
recommendations to the IA Personnel for correction and mitigation of
any internal control defects revealed. The IA Personnel considered that
the recommendations would be effective and was satisfied that there
had been no major deficiency noted in the Group’s risk management
and internal controls systems being reviewed. The Internal Control
Auditor and IA Personnel regularly report to the Audit Committee the
results of the activities pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls, including but not limited to, any indications of
failings or material weaknesses in those controls, based on which, the
Audit Committee assists the Board to ensure that the financial reporting
system, internal control system, risk management system, regulatory
compliance and associated procedures are sufficient and effective,
and cooperates with the Internal Control Auditor and IA Personnel to
ensure their access to information necessary to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk management.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board considered during the
year, the risk management and internal control systems to be effective
and have been implemented with adequate resources during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has adopted a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The Inside Information
Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group in relation to restriction
on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours, unintentional
selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of
inside information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management takes all reasonable measures
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
breach of any disclosure obligations. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the
attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates, who will notify
the Board timely and accordingly, in which case and in the event that
there is evidence of material violation of the Inside Information Policy,
the Board or designated appropriate persons will decide the course of
actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of the Group's annual audit and other audit related services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$2,420,000 and HK$110,000 respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General

Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
for a special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require
the Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction
of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General

Meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders
may together, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meetings.

() Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting in 2020, being the annual
general meeting held on 29 May 2020 (the “2020 AGM").
Notice of the 2020 AGM was duly sent in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and
the Bye-laws. All members of the Board attended the 2020
AGM and adequate measures were taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and to enable effectively
communication of their views to the Board. At the 2020 AGM,
the Directors were made available to answer questions and
poll procedures were explained to the shareholders in detail
in accordance with the requirements under the CG Code. The
Company’s external auditor also attended the 2020 AGM to
answer any questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies applied and its independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires to the Board.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company’s shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at the
Company's website) to ensure that the shareholders and potential
investors at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile, in
order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow active shareholders’ engagement with the
Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Report of the Directors
EFXTHRS

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of E-payment
Terminals products and the provision of payment solutions services and
maintenance and installation services.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading E-payment Terminals solutions provider and one
of the most active global players. The Group was founded in 2000 and
the Company went listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) in December 2010. The strategy of PAX is to
focus on two key particular customer groups (financial institutions and
third-party merchant acquirers) by offering various integrated payment
solutions services.

Further details of the business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, details of proposed dividends and discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 9 to 12 and Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 13 to 26. Particulars of any important event
affecting the Group can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 13 to 26 and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The aforementioned references under this sub-section to other parts of
this annual report form part of this Report of the Directors.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In addition to disclosure in the section headed "Exchange Rates
Exposure” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group is also
faced with other risks and uncertainties which might affect the Group's
business, financial condition, operating results or growth prospects
leading to a divergence from expected or historical results. The principal
key risk factors and their potential impact are summarized below. While
the risk factors below are not exhaustive, there may be other risks
currently inapparent or immaterial to the Group which could be revealed
or become material in the future.
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While grasping the business and growth opportunities confronting
COVID-19 in light of the accelerating global cashless initiatives, the
Group encounters risks and uncertainties arising from suspension of
work and postponed delivery of products by suppliers resulting from
national and local regulations on epidemic prevention and control
policies. To minimise the negative impact of the outbreak to the Group,
a series of precautionary and control measures have been implemented
in our offices across the globe, including the adoption of comprehensive
and co-ordinated approach and measures to enhance our supply
chain management, through responding promptly, staying alert to the
situation, and working in an open and transparent manner.

Besides, the payment solutions methods are rapidly evolving in pace
with the continuous technological developments and changing
customer demands. Lagging behind the dynamics will drive customers to
our competitors, and in turn affect our business and prospects. Thanks
to its strong established R&D fundamentals, the Group will continue
to invest resources in R&D to develop a spectrum of industry leading
products and offer cutting-edge payment solutions to customers in
order to remain competitive.

In terms of compliance risks, the Group is subject to complex and
changing laws and regulations in different countries, which expose the
Group to increased costs and potential liabilities. In particular, due to our
substantial presence in the PRC, our business and prospects are affected
by changes in industry-specific Chinese government policies. To ensure
full compliance, the Group closely monitor regulatory requirements,
engage professional advisers when necessary and make timely responses
to policy and regulatory changes.

In addition, the ongoing international trade disputes and relevant
policy changes may result in tariffs and other measures that could
adversely affect the Group’s business. For example, trade tensions may
lead to a comprehensive series of tariffs imposed on our exports by
the importing countries. Tariffs increase our product costs, resulting in
possible reduction of profit margin or reduced product competitiveness
for customers due to elevated selling prices. The Group will closely
monitor any changes in connection with the trade tension and adjust its
strategies accordingly.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in
the process of operation. As the Group’s business does not involve
production lines, major wastes comprise terminal machines and tools
to be disposed of post customer consumption. To mitigate the adverse
impact on the environment, waste machines and tools are transferred to
government-recognised recycling companies for undergoing electronic
waste recycling and decomposition. In recent years, we have also
strengthened the green office concept by promoting paperless office,
use of energy-saving electrical appliances such as LED light pipes and
inductive faucets, wastes classification and recycling, and encouraging
video conferencing in place of physical business trips to reduce energy
consumption and carbon footprint.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group's business and the compliance measures adopted and
implemented during the year are outlined below:-

Provisions on the Administration of Compulsory Product
Certification

Key scope

The Group’s E-payment Terminals products are required to pass the
national compulsory product certification (i.e. China Compulsory
Certification) and be marked with the certification mark before they can
be delivered, sold, imported or used in other business activities.

Compliance measures

The Group conducts quality assurance capability inspections on
factories, including but not limited to production process controls and
inspections, internal quality audits, etc., and conducts type tests on
end products to ensure that products are in strict compliance with the
Compulsory Product Certification requirements in terms of structure,
safety-critical components and key components that have impact on
electromagnetic compatibility.

The Group has also established product certification management
procedures, which clarify the application process of our certification
products, their routine maintenance and the use and management
method of our product certification marks, in order, to ensure that the
Group meets the requirements of the Compulsory Product Certification
requirements for product certification.
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Contract Law of the People's Republic of China; Product
Quality Law of the People's Republic of China

Key scope

Agreements among natural persons, legal persons and other
organisations for the establishment, modification or termination of
a relationship involving civil rights and obligations are subject to the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.

The Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China is applicable
to all activities of production and sales in the PRC. The Group shall fulfill
all relevant product quality responsibilities and obligations in the PRC.

Compliance measures

The Group has adopted internal monitoring and control measures to
record the entire process concerning the entering into, performance and
amendment, etc., of contracts to control contract risks.

In addition to implementing policies to require suppliers to sign quality
assurance agreements and related documents, the Group has also set up
strict material warehousing inspection procedures and product delivery
inspection procedures to ensure that product quality complies with legal
requirements.

Sales of Goods Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SOGO"); Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance (Chapter 457 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“S0S0")

Key scope

SOGO regulates the sales of goods by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOGO provides that, in a contract for the sale of goods by description,
there is an implied condition that the goods shall correspond with the
description. It also provides that where a seller sells goods in the course
of a business, there is an implied condition that the goods supplied
under the contract are of merchantable quality, except where an
exception condition is met.

SOSO regulates the supply of services by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOSO provides that in a contract for the supply of service where the
supplier is acting in the course of a business, there is an implied term
that the supplier will carry out the service with reasonable care and
skill. It also provides that under a contract for the supply of a service
where the supplier is acting in the course of a business, if the time
for carrying out the service is not fixed by the contract or is not left
to be determined by the course of dealing between the parties, there
is an implied term that the supplier will carry out the service within a
reasonable time.

49 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

(REARHEMBESREZE) ; (PEARLM
BEmMmER)

TEaE
BRAVEAREMEBRZBRI-EE K
ITREBMNEFFACNHREEET(REA
REMBEERE) -

ETEEAREEREE - HEDZH LAE
T(REARANBEERREE) > EEEDPE
REBCTERMENETRARYE

EHREE

AEBCDHRMAIBEIZERIZEFIER LS F
WRIT BT - BEF2BE LUEFHSEA
FREERBEHEREERERESEMXARNK
R AEETREBRBHYHABREEN E
mb R AER ERERRENSERRE

BEREMF6E(EmEERA) ((EmE
BRI ; BREFFASTE(RFFIRME (BB
2R 1560 (TR R FRERR) 1%
Bd)

TEHEE
(EREERINRETCEENREENERES -
(EmEERMEE BERHAREENS
WHEERYARERRBETHRS M-
ENRE NELTEXEHEFREG F—F
REEE  RESHRENERETEER
& BRIEm 2 B IMELF o

(BRBREM REHEN FODREEXERBREE
BYBRFS IR 1 o (ARFF IRt (R IRFN) 176D RE >
NEHAREEFBEDTS  RIEARRIR
BRSO B —BSET REZARU
GIERENBERRMIFHRES - CTRRE L
RBRHSOMBHEAETESBRERFTREH
AR%5 > R BRI B RS RIS > SIF LI 5 BY
R BRIRE  ERZGHRNE—RSIF
FORERBABESBRBEAFLZIBR



Report of the Directors
EFXTHRS

Compliance measures

The Group has adopted appropriate internal control, quality control
measures, customer feedback system and implemented standardized
product return policies to ensure compliance with SOGO and SOSO in
relation to the supply of goods and services in Hong Kong.

During the year, there has been no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and growth
opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees remuneration
packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees
are granted options under the Company's share option scheme in
recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s physical
and mental development. Diverse events and activities are organised for
the employees for fostering work-life balance and personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and suggestions of
our customers and have always maintained effective communications
with the customers. We will continue to reach out for current and
prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-site visits and major
customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to
achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the Group's
business performance and growth because suppliers can have direct
influence over the quality of the products and services and customer
satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers” in
respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
comprehensive appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing
suppliers and their products and performance. We are committed
to establishing a close and long-term cooperation relationship with
business partners.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 78.

DIVIDEND

The Board’s goal is to bring sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development.
Pursuant to the Company’s dividend policy, dividends may be
recommended, declared and paid to shareholders from time to time,
determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board, taking into
account the following factors:

° Group's financial results and general financial condition;

° the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity;
o liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;

. the Group's current and future operations;

° the Group's business development strategies and future expansion
plans;

° the general market conditions;

° any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.
During the year,

- a final dividend of HK$0.06 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2019, amounting to approximately HK$65.0 million,
was declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company; and

- an interim dividend of HK$0.07 per ordinary share for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 (2019: HK$0.04 per ordinary share),
amounting to approximately HK$75.8 million, was declared and
paid to the shareholders of the Company.

In addition, a special dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share (2019:
Nil), amounting to approximately HK$109.3 million, was declared on 18
December 2020 and paid to the shareholders of the Company on 22
January 2021.
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The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HK$0.10
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$0.06 per ordinary share) to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Friday, 4 June 2021, subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company which will be held on Tuesday, 18 May 2021,
and if passed, the final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 22 June 2021.
For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
2 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(the "Share Registrar”) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 June
2021. Together with the abovementioned interim dividend and special
dividend, the total dividend per ordinary share for the year amounted to
HK$0.27 (2019: HK$0.10), subject to the shareholders’ approval of the
proposed final dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of
the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM will be
Wednesday, 12 May 2021. All transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 May 2021.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable donations of HK$110,000 were made by the Group during
the year (2019: HK$964,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year, the Company operated two share option schemes
adopted on 1 December 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) and 2 May 2019
(the “"2019 Scheme") respectively, both having an effective period of 10
years from the aforesaid adoption dates, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The 2010 Scheme

The 2010 Scheme expired on 30 November 2020. At the date of this
Report, no further share options may be granted and no further share is
available for issue under the 2010 Scheme.

The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to reward the relevant participants
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Group for the
benefit of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the 2010 Scheme would be any Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who, the Board considers, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of share options granted to each eligible participant under the 2010
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1.0% of the number of the shares of
the Company in issue.
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The exercise price for the share options under the 2010 Scheme shall be
determined by the Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant of each share
option.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1.00
in acceptance of the Company'’s offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020, there was no outstanding
options under the 2010 Scheme. During the year ended 31 December
2020, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the 2010 Scheme.

The 2019 Scheme

The purpose of the 2019 Scheme is to reward eligible participants who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the 2019 Scheme would be any Director, officer,
employee or consultant of any member of the Group and any other
groups or classes of participants which the Board, in its absolute
discretion, considers to have contributed or will contribute, whether
by way of business alliance or other business arrangement, to the
development and growth of the Group. The Board recognises persons
other than the Group's personnel may also contribute to the Group's
development and growth if such persons can contribute in the capacity
of distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or other service providers of the Group. The Board will apply
the aforesaid in any consideration of potential eligible participants that
are not the Group's personnel.
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Unless approved by the independent shareholders, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share options
granted under the 2019 Scheme to each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1.0% of the total number of the shares of the Company in
issue.

The exercise price for the share options under the 2019 Scheme shall be
determined by the Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1.00
in acceptance of the Company’s offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2019 Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (if any) will be 82,514,550 shares, being 7.5% of the
total number of shares in issue on 2 May 2019, the date of adoption of
the 2019 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option was
granted, cancelled or lapsed, and a total of 12,926,000 share options
(which were part of the share options granted to the employees on 2
October 2019) were exercised, and the weighted average closing price
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$5.98 per share. The particulars of the share options
under the 2019 Scheme are as follows:
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MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE AT BERGEEE)
COMPANY
Number of Number of
outstanding outstanding
Closing price share options share options
immediately held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled held as at
before the 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant date of grant  Exercise price 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
RZEZ%E RZEZ%E
—-A-H +ZRA=+-H
24 2 Fifs2Z
L ) WA i W
% bidi] =k HigmE T ERELE EREH ERfE FRRH FEREH RBREXE
(HK9) (HKS)
(B7) (B7)
Directors
£
Nie Guoming 2 October 2019% 3530 3570 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
ZEH “2-nETRACAE*
LuJie 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
EA “E-A\E+RCH¢
Li Wenjin 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
FNE “E-nE+BAZR
Total for Directors 23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000
Employees
8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 59,510,000 - (12,926,000) - - 46,584,000
(43t) “E-A\F+RCH
Total for Employees 59,510,000 - (12,926,000) - - 46,584,000
[EEME
Total 82,510,000 - (12,926,000 - - 69,584,000
ey
* 30% of the share options were vested on the date of grant, a further 30%  * 30%ERECHNELBHAEE > S430%H

were vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining
40% were vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant. All share
options are immediately exercisable after being vested to the grantees. The
exercise period of these share options shall be 5 years from the date of

grant, subject to the aforesaid vesting period.

T As at the date of this report, a total of 34,478,000 shares (representing
approximately 3.15% of the shares in issue as at the date of this Report)

are available for issue under the 2019 Scheme.

REERRL AN -BFREBEARA > HER
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounting to HK$45,082,000 (2019: HK$8,645,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,243,352,000 (2019: HK$1,274,530,000) may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 185.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 20,283,000
ordinary shares at an aggregate consideration of approximately

AR Ikf# A

BEBRE-NN—FRQREZE (EEE])

KABRZE_ZF+_H=+—HARH

st

45,082,000 TiEHEAIHOIRK (ZE—NF
8,645, ooo‘%r_u) o JAT » WA B P LU B AT &

7D AR 15
—E-NF

BstietE

BRI A #01,243,352,0008 7T
1,274,530,000775) FIFRIE ©

’&ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁujtﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%‘ R RYVIR SR TE » T
ZIEBTERARZ SR BRE -

HFMBEE

AEBRBEREMBREENESE KT HEIR
A EE B 1858 ¢

RBE - WESEOE S

RER AR R PTER & 20,283,000
fREER 4B #1%1%,%’\]7%77,745,190575 =3

HK$77,745,190 on the Stock Exchange as follows: B
No. of shares Total
repurchased Consideration
BiEE R Consideration per share Paid
Date of Repurchase BE[E1 H #A #HE BRAE BftERE
Highest HK$ Lowest HK$ HK$
REETT RIEET BT
7 January 2020 “EEFF—-HBtH 7,198,000 3.90 3.78 28,023,790
8 January 2020 “E2ZF—-HBN\H 789,000 3.90 3.88 3,070,910
5 February 2020 “ETEFE"RAH 1,439,000 3.80 3.68 5,420,020
10 February 2020 “EEF"H+H 175,000 3.92 3.88 680,900
27 February 2020 “ECEF-A°++H 3,000,000 4.18 3.93 12,168,560
24 April 2020 “EFFEMA YA 3,000,000 3.27 3.09 9,518,880
27 May 2020 “Z-FFERR-+tH 882,000 3.19 3.10 2,781,900
24 June 2020 ZEIEFERAZFHIA 800,000 3.68 3.61 2,919,940
9 July 2020 “EEFEEANAH 800,000 3.43 3.38 2,732,000
21 August 2020 “ECEFNAZ+—H 600,000 5.09 4.95 3,015,780
24 September 2020 “EEFNAAZ+EH 800,000 4.80 4.64 3,793,760
30 October 2020 B FF+H=1+H 800,000 4.59 4.46 3,618,750
Total B 5t 20,283,000 77,745,190
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The Board considers that the share repurchases were in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders and would lead to an
enhancement of the net assets value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Company. All the abovementioned repurchased shares were
cancelled during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares or other
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Lu Jie and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Separate resolutions shall also be proposed for the re-election of
Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, who has served the Company as an
independent non-executive Director for more than 9 years, at the AGM
pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing, from 23 May 2019 for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019
for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 6 to 8.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to the
publication of the 2020 Interim Report of the Company are set out
below:

Name of Director

EEHA

Details of change

REHN

EEREREEEREREFE

EERaREEENERFBEHNFE
EEEN BT

BEARR T _TSFRHBSHBPNERZ B
BLEBRABIBSIBWEEATREZEETE
FHEEHE ST ¢

Nie Guoming

= [ A5 FEEFWSETESE,860,0008T B T _—
Lu Jie

EAR FEEEMNSEES1,980,0008T B -5 _—
Li Wenijin

EXE FEEEMSEESR,860,0008T B

Yip Wai Ming

S FEEFWESEEE280,0008T B _—
Wu Min

=8 FEEFWSETEE280,0008 BE_E _—

Man Kwok Kuen, Charles

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$1,860,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.
F—A—HEER-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$ 1,980,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.
F—A—HELER-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$1,860, OOO with effect from 1 January 2021.
—F—B—BELEN-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$280,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.
F-B—HEEH-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$280,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.
F—A—HEEXM-

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$280,000 with effect from 1 January 2021.

X B

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liability,
including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action against
the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred arising from or
incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Company’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

ERRATHHEHEN IR AR KRR
SFREm R

AT CERE+ AT —HBESIREAA
BITBAEE (TR RARQE K EEK
FE(EERESERPERL (MEERBEK
1) BBXVER) WA AT D (TARH1) ~ERAF
ERERO REST BEEELASATRER
HERIAEGRAFEIVEEFENETLMARE L
MR SR IO L ETAERETES
RSWZEFA (TEEFH) EMERAA K
ERBMERZMARAE (MR NEE K
XEWT !

AT EREE.10BTHEER

Approximate

Personal Other percentage of
Name of Director Capacity interests interests® Total”  shareholding
Rz
e ERER BAARES Hiigo aEE0 B FE L
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 1,000,000 5,200,000(L) 0.48%
BEHR (/) BaEEA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 11,000,000 19,870,000(L) 1.82%
B (THER) BaEEA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 11,000,000 13,890,000(L) 1.27%
EXE BiHEA
Notes: M5k -

(i) The letter “"L” denotes a long position in Shares.

(i) These represented the underlying interests in Shares in respect of share
options granted to the respective Director subject to certain vesting
conditions, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2020 which was 1,092,837,000 ordinary shares.

(i) TLERTKRONEFE-

(i) HERROTOERAED ARARTFTRIESFL
ZRAEBHRENBRE FERANEES
GRS TREREST R —H-

* BALEDNDREBEARBR _E_ZEF+_A
—t+—HBZETKRMH#E% (B11,092,837,000
PR EEAR) stE o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders (not being a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as
follows:

FERRI D BB RA R B9 2 B33k
B

BANBIREBEES RBEKRAEI6CKETFEEN
RN R E_EFE+_A=+—
H>TERE (MIFESFHTHREH) REAF
MM RERROIFMEENEZRXEN
T

Approximate

Class of Total number percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity securities of Shares® shareholding®
BRR % TE 515 Eekz 2 bl BRID4BELO BAStb?
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000(L) 33.31%

("Hi sun”) BEm#EAA HER

SEAE (FE) BRAE (M%)
Notes: P T :
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares. 1. FEIRTREBRONEE -
2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares inissue 2. BB REBERAQABNR_-_ZZZE+_AH

as at 31 December 2020 which was 1,092,837,000 ordinary shares.

61 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

—+—HBEZTRMm4% (B11,092,837,000
B EiEAR) stE



Report of the Directors
EFXTHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below and in
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group did not
enter into any other connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which is subject to disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun (together with its subsidiaries the “Hi Sun Group”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and its subsidiaries are connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Accordingly,
transactions between the Group and the Hi Sun Group constitute
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has, from time to time,
entered into individual agreements with the Hi Sun Group relating to (i)
the supply of E-payment Terminals Products (the “E-payment Terminals
Transactions”) and (ii) the purchase of Chips (the “Chips Transactions”)
under the 2019 Framework Agreement and the 2020 Chips Framework
Agreement (as defined hereinbelow) respectively. These transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

. Supply of E-payment Terminals Products
On 5 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2019 Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and the Hi Sun Group
agreed to purchase E-payment Terminals Products for a term
of 3 years commencing on 1 January 2019 and expiring on 31
December 2021.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions under the 2019 Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 were all set at HK$170,000,000 and
the actual aggregate contract value for the E-payment Terminals
Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the year
ended 31 December 2020 were approximately HK$47,498,000
and HK$38,595,000 respectively.

In view of Hi Sun Group’s track record as a payment processing
solutions provider, the Board considers the continuous supply
of E-payment Terminals Products to Hi Sun Group by virtue of
entering into of the 2019 Framework Agreement would offer
considerable potential for the Group to secure market share and
maintain the Group’s market position in the E-payment Terminals
Products market.
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During the year, the Group has followed the internal control
measures and policies in determining the prices and terms of
the individual agreements governing the E-payment Terminals
Transactions, and all E-payment Terminals Transactions were on
terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered to
independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
quantity and specifications.

Purchase of Chips

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2020 Chips Framework Agreement”) with
Hi Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and
the Hi Sun Group agreed to sell the mag-stripe card security
decoder chips (the “Security Decoder Chips”), the security
micro controller unit chips (the “Security Micro Controller Unit
Chips”) and the contactless reader chips (the “Contactless Reader
Chips”, collectively with the Security Decoder Chips and Security
Micro Controller Unit Chips, the “Chips”) for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31 December
2022.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the Chips
Transactions under the 2020 Chips Framework Agreement for the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2022 were set at HK$80,000,000, HK$90,000,000
and HK$110,000,000 respectively. The actual aggregate contract
value for the Chips Transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately HK$76,607,000.

The Board considers that the entering into of the 2020 Chips
Framework Agreement would ensure continuous and stable supply
of the Chips for production of the Group’s E-Payment Terminals
related products and reduce the production costs by saving the
operational costs in sourcing suitable market suppliers, as the
Chips supplied by the Hi Sun Group were fit for the Group’s
production needs and with specifications not commonly supplied
by other market suppliers.
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Purchase of the Chips under the 2020 Chips Framework
Agreement is on a non-exclusive basis, and the Group maintains
its discretionary right to source the Chips from other suppliers.
During the year, the purchase price of the Chips under the
2020 Chips Framework Agreement were determined by making
reference to the prices of other products sold by Hi Sun Group and
the prices of similar products sold by third party suppliers in the
industry. The Group has also adopted internal control measures
in respect of, inter alia, determining the prices and terms of the
individual agreements governing the prices and terms for the
Chips Transactions and sourcing for comparable suppliers. The
Chips Transactions were on terms no less favourable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties.

Please also refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements for
other details.

The Board including the independent non-executive Directors has
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirms
that these transactions were entered into by the Company in
accordance with relevant pricing policies, and that these transactions
were conducted:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms that
the auditor has issued to the Board an unqualified letter confirming the
matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as being in order. A copy of this letter has
been provided to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the
year is disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
All related party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than
those described in the section above headed “Connected Transactions”)
under the Listing Rules are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it
has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and
Hi Sun on 1 December 2010 (“"Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant
to which Hi Sun shall not compete either directly or indirectly with the
Group's principal business activities in such geographic territories in
which the Group operates.

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration (“Declaration”) of compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition confirming its compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned undertakings and consider that Hi Sun has complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Li Wenjin (“Mr. Li"), Executive Director of the Company, who is
concurrently serving as an executive director of Hi Sun and a director of
certain of its subsidiaries, is interested in 6,400,000 shares of Hi Sun,
representing 0.23% of its issued shares as at 31 December 2020, and
hence required to abstain from voting on any resolution of the Board in
respect of any particular transaction or business involving any actual or
potential conflict of interest between the Group and the Hi Sun Group.
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Notwithstanding Mr. Li's aforesaid interests in the Hi Sun Group, the
Board considers that Mr. Li is not interested in a business competing
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the Group's
business, taking into account the Deed of Non-Competition, the
Declaration, any implications thereunder and the independent non-
executive Directors’ subsequent review thereof.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates is interested in any business competing or is likely to compete
either directly or indirectly with the Group’s business that is discloseable
under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in which any Director or any entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested directly or indirectly subsisted at
any time during or at the end of the year, nor was there any contract
of significance between the Group and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2020 attributable to the Group's major suppliers and
customers are respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 16.6%
— five largest suppliers combined 37.3%
Sales

— the largest customer 39.1%
— five largest customers combined 49.7%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of the Company) has any interests in any of the suppliers
or customers disclosed above.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, under which employers and employees are each required
to make regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions
additional to Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an employee
are fully and immediately vested in the employee once paid to the
trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return derived from the
investment of the Mandatory Contributions is also fully and immediately
vested in the employee. The employees are entitled to all of the accrued
benefits derived from the employer's Mandatory Contributions upon
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject
to other applicable provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 22% of their basic wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained at all times during
the year sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 78
to 184, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEA AR EMREENEE

Impairment of receivables

Vi dl ¢ =Pz

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors) Note 4(a)
(critical accounting estimates and judgments) and Note
21 (trade and bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost) to the consolidated financial statements for
related disclosures
B FE R FE IR EE » 55 2 Fiin & 1 B 8RR M523, 1(b)(ii)
(B REREZE) ~[15t4(a) (BEZ B 555K H 6 KM
FE21 (JEMER 70 R FE N 2 15 e 1 1 2 h R B AR 2 At %
HEE)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$1,532.5 million and provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$115.3 million.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on provision for impairment losses of trade receivables
included:
BMEEMERETERBRRBAEGEREZEFER
BE

- Understood, evaluated and validated the key control

procedures over the management’'s estimation of
expected credit losses allowance and periodic review
of aged receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors associated with estimating the expected credit
losses;
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- Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated
and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern from the past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers, evidence from
external sources including the relevant market research
regarding the relevant forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors used in management'’s
assessment.
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEA AR EMREENEE

Management applied judgment in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location and its ageing
category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 3 years
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EEEEAFETEEAGEREBE AN ENETHH
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We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgment involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the
trade receivables.
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- Involved our internal valuation expert to develop an
auditor’s point estimate in assessing the expected credit
losses allowance including forward-looking information;

—  ZHBEMANAFEEER LR TGTEREEREEE
BFRE S R BAMR R (G 5T BIERIEMER

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices; and
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- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts.
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Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgment made by management in respect of the expected
credit losses allowance and the collectability of receivables
were supportable by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEA AR EMREENEE

Provision for inventories

PR

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates and
Jjudgments) and Note 20 (inventories) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures
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The Group held inventories of HK$1,652.8 million as at 31
December 2020. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV"). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling
prices have declined. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group has made provision for inventories of
HK$153.2 million.
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Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items.
EEEEETFERAKRAIEREFEZRBRER §EE
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Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on NRV and obsolescence of inventories included:
KMEEMEREETHEECE2RFERHEZTBRH
THHETREFEE .

- Understood, evaluated and validated the key control
procedures over the management’s estimation of the
NRV of the inventories and conducting periodic review
on inventory obsolescence, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
associated with estimating NRV of the inventories;
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- Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
provision of inventories to assess the effectiveness of
management ‘s estimation process;

— HEATHETEEEEENERUTEEEE M
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- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether
there is any damaged or obsolete inventory;

- HESETER UANHAESEINERIBRE

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profile of individual inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement correspondence and invoices;
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BERKBKARAE —TTEER 72



Independent Auditor's Report
VRS T

Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEA AR EMREENEE

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which
requires significant judgments and assumptions to be
made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products
of similar nature and expectation of future sales based on
current market conditions.
BEEEUHEBAEERELEMXRGAESARN L
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Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long
aged inventories. Management also conducted periodic
review on inventory obsolescence, including performance
of periodic inventory counts and review of holding period
for individual inventory items.
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We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision
for inventories involves significant judgment and various
uncertainties as a result of changing technology, customer
demand and competitors actions.
BEMBATHLEBEEENHEENBELTIRERA
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- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of
significant inventory items, obtained through the usage
report subsequent to the year end as a basis to identify
inventory obsolescence. Where there are no subsequent
usage of the respective items after the year end, we
discussed with management its assessment on estimated
future utilisation, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of the
relevant finished goods by using our industry knowledge
and external market analysis, as appropriate; and
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- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory
items, by comparing the selling price subsequent to the
year end, against the carrying values of these individual
finished goods. Where there are no subsequent sales
of the respective finished goods after the year end,
we discussed with management as to the realisable
value of the products, corroborating explanations with
the inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins,
and current market conditions by using our industry
knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate.
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Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to the provision for inventories
were supportable by available evidence.

RIEPMRER RMEREEEEREEREZGHBRS
B ESZ FFo



Independent Auditor's Report
VRS T

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VRS T

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VRS T

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement
FENmR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—EBEITE —E—hE=E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Revenue A 5 5,650,619 4,925,733
Cost of sales HE R A 7 (3.313,310) (2,980,900)
Gross profit EF 2,337,309 1,944,833
Other income H A A 5 77,838 79,056
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (5518) Wz 328 5 (2,115) 12,774
Selling expenses HERMS 7 (499,321)  (465,657)
Administrative expenses THER 7,8 (781,456)  (743,466)
Net impairment losses on financial assets EMEEZREFERE 7 (65,083) (65,914)
Operating profit T 1,067,172 761,626
Finance costs &R 9 (8,285) (5,155)
Share of results of investments accounted for  ZIETEARZ
using the equity method KEEER 19 (6,046) (1,798)
Profit before income tax FRETS IR AR 1,052,841 754,673
Income tax expense FriEE 11 (148,991)  (129,809)
Profit for the year EEHF 903,850 624,864
Profit attributable to: FE(EEF :
Owners of the Company FN/NEIEST =N 900,123 623,873
Non-controlling interests RS 3,727 991
903,850 624,864
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRAET BRETT
Earnings per share for the profit EREFEA
attributable to the owners of e ER 2 SRER .
the Company:
— Basic —H®K 12(a) 0.828 0.567
— Diluted — 8 12(b) 0.823 0.567

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEEEWRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
ZEIRE “ET-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihEz2 FHET FHET
Profit for the year FEREF 903,850 624,864
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hih2mEW=E (§518) »
net of tax MNpRRIE
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to  BZ B EH HEFBmzEH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of B ESINHTE A BB 7R =
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ ZE4ERIE R Z%E 184,195 (46,105)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of  HEMBATBER
a subsidiary HMEE (A (756) -
Items that will not be reclassified to TEENSEEEm 2B
profit or loss
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value —IBIRAF(EsT A EMEE W E
through other comprehensive income ZERIBEEZNE 17(b) (7,966) (2,240)
Remeasurement of post-employment BB ENERE
benefit obligation 59 (445)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FEZ2EUNELEEE > NRRIE
net of tax 1,079,382 576,074
Total comprehensive income FEE 2 U 4R%E :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBFBA 1,079,198 573,222
Non-controlling interests JERER = 184 2,852

1,079,382 576,074

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated 5585EF 184B MM sEhfr & M R T E B I
financial statements. e
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HEEERRR

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEF —“T-NE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE FAET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 14 129,240 69,610
Right-of-use assets BEEFRE 15 291,137 221,347
Intangible assets EBEEE 16 39,964 55,939
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESAB®RZ
profit or loss SREE 17(a) 130,120 104,707
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEstAHEMEERGE 2
other comprehensive income SREE 17(b) 2,467 10,433
Investments accounted for using the BREDEARZIEE
equity method 19 21,702 15,949
Loan to an investment accounted for using BREDEARZEREER
the equity method 34(b) 4,781 4,196
Other non-current assets HMIERs & E 22 4,966 4,368
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISMEE 30 57,566 35,971
Total non-current assets EREBEELEE 681,943 522,520
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 20 1,629,901 1,301,459
Other current assets Humgh&E 22 47,707 17,389
Other financial assets at amortised cost R AT R EtEMEE 21 22,087 15,579
Trade and bills receivables & W BR = Rz FE U 22 4% 21 1,434,253 1,513,374
Restricted cash ZREIRE 23 15,345 115,877
Short-term bank deposits DHRER1TE R 24 3,082 3,020
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 25 3,802,741 3,230,005
Total current assets MEBEERE 6,955,116 6,196,703
Total assets BERE 7,637,059 6,719,223
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners of TATFE AEGER
the Company
Share capital Rg 7~ 26 109,284 110,019
Reserves #E 27 5,492,658 4,655,926
5,601,942 4,765,945
Non-controlling interests JEHERG RS (28,370) (26,593)
Total equity g 5,573,572 4,739,352

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
FAEEREAR

As at 31 December

®w+=-—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—EBEITE —E—hE=E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FHET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Borrowings &8 29 - 2,254
Lease liabilities HESE 15 93,811 88,213
Deferred income tax liabilities REPFEREaE 30 7,953 7,240
Other non-current liabilities HMIEmenas 7,404 6,510
Total non-current liabilities ERENEELELE 109,168 104,217
Current liabilities mENAaE

Trade and bills payables FETBR RN R FE AT 22 9% 28 1,371,267 1,382,487
Other payables and accruals H AN FE (1 AR 7R K FE 51 R 1B 28 485,459 299,057
Current tax liabilities EHRESE 68,817 170,381
Lease liabilities HEad 15 28,776 23,729
Total current liabilities BB EEE 1,954,319 1,875,654
Total liabilities =Rigk] 2,063,487 1,979,871
Total equity and liabilities ke 7,637,059 6,719,223

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of ZHiGEHHBREN _E_—F=F_-_+hH
Directors on 29 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. EESgtE THTMIESRAKREES-

NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
FEEEA E=EXE
Director Director

BE EZE

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated ~85ZE 184B M b ir &M HHRERPVE R I

financial statements. o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mAEmEHR

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATFEAELS
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment - comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserves reserve earnings reserves interests equity
BATE
HARMRE
Wiz
Rk ROEE  EAEE  BRECE CHEVHE SHEERE 0 HfER  NEER  REBY  HEME  HEREE  RENE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR FiEn FEn FEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TR FiEn FiEn FEn
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HECRCRETIAC-ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIEZEE-F-H74 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 1341 (149,028) 3,834,670 4,655,926 (26,593) 4,739,352
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - - 900,123 900,123 311 903,850
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2ENE/ (58
Exchange differences arising on tranlation of the ~ EEMNBATNBRREEZ
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - - - - 187,746 - 187,746 (3,551) 184,195
Change in value of a financial asset at fairvale ~ —BRAFEFAEM2ENEZ
through other comprefensive income SRHEEZNE - - - - - (7,966) - - - (7,966) - (7,966)
Release of exchange reserves upon HENBLIRRYERESE
disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - (756) - (756) - (756)
Remeasurement of post-employment BERENERES
benefit obligation - - - - 51 - - - - 51 8 59
Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year ERRENG/ (B 48 - - - - 51 (7.966) - 186,990 900123 1,079,198 184 107938
Transactions with owners BEEAZRR
Repurchase of the Company's shares (Note 26) ERALENR (Hz26) (2,028) (76,031) - - - - - - - (76,031) - (78,059)
Dividends declared to the shareholders of BERAAIREZRS
the Company - - - - - - - - (250,093) (250,093) - (250,003)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling BAHBATEERERZRE
interest in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - (2.221) (2,227)
Share option scheme R
- value of services provided (Note 10) -ERERRNEE (0 - - - 38,805 - - - - - 38,805 - 38,805
~ share options exercised (Note 26) ~BiTfERRIE (H3k20) 1293 44,853 - - - - - - - 44,853 - 46,146
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAT - - - - - - - - - - 266 266
Total transactions with owners BEE\IRRER (135) (31,178) - 38,805 - - - - (250,093) (242,466) (1961) (245,162)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIBI3E
+ZB=t-RzE&R 109,284 1,243,352 (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 1341 37,962 4,484,700 5,492,658 (28,370) 5573512
The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 585E 184E MM sk h 4R & M MR B EH b 56
financial statements. Pal
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mAEmEHR

Attributable to the owners of the Company
EATREAES

Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment  comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total controlling Total
(ap\tal premium reserve reserve reserve reserve [eserves reserve eamings reserves interests equny
BATE
SAHMEE
Wiz
Rk R EE EhiE  BREHE THENHE SREEHR HftE SERE RERF HEEE  HERE it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

Thn T i Thn Thn ThEn TEr TEr Thn Thn T T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZF-NE+ZAZt-ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZF-hnE-A-B2EH 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,1713 (19 (7.822) 134 (101,004) 3298813 4,132,034 (29,445) 4,212,608
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - - 623,873 623873 991 624,864
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Eth2E (58) /&
Exchange differences arising on tranlation of the  EEMNBATNBRREEZ
finandil statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - - - - (48,024) - (48,024) 1919 (4,105)
Change in value of a financial asset at fairvale  —BRAFEFAEM2ENEZ
through other comprehensive income SREEZNE - - - - - (2.240) - - - (2,240) - (2,240)
Remeasurement of post-employment EBAENERE
benefit obligation - - - - (387) - - - - (387) (58) (445)
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year ERRE (BB /RELE - - - - (387) (2.240) - (48,024) 623873 573222 285 576,074
Transactions with owners BEEAZRR
Dividends declared to the shareholders BERREAATRRZES
of the Company - - - - - - - - (88,016) (88,016) - (83,016)
Share option scheme BiREe
~value of services provided (Note 10) -BRIERBHERE (Hi10) - - - 38,686 - - - - - 38,686 38,686
Total transactions with owners HEEAIRGAE - - - 38,686 - - - - (88,016) (49,330) - (49,330)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-hE
+ZB=t+-BZ4H 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 134 (149,028) 3,834,670 4,655,926 (26,593) 4739352

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated 5585ZF 184B M st hir &M HEHRFRPVE R
financial statements. 7o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HERHERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—EIEF “EZ2—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5k FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELBNIRERE
Cash generated from operations BEMBRE 31(a) 1,011,491 1,262,356
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEETIER (233,757) (20,557)
China corporate income tax paid B HE T EMRER (24,252) (18,481)
Overseas income tax paid BEEIINTIER (10,149) (11,272)
Interest paid [SENEIES) (8,285) (5,155)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEEFRIRES FEE 735,048 1,206,891
Cash flows from investing activities KEFZHNRERE
Investment in an investment accounted KRE—BEEEREARZEE
for using the equity method (11,127) -
Investment in a financial asset at fair value KRE—HRATESTABTZ
through profit or loss TREE 17(a) (22,495) -
Investment in a financial asset at fair value S E— IR AT EFA
through other comprehensive income HthemhazeMEE 17(b) - (803)
Increase in short-term bank deposits NG RASRITERR (157) (571)
Loan to an investment accounted for using BREGDEARZIEEER
the equity method - (4,196)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE -BENEE (60,155) (28,028)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEEEFRE (58,306) -
Proceeds from sales of property, HEMZE - -BERRBPIEHIE
plant and equipment 31(b) - 16,616
Interest received BUFIE 38,861 27,782
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE FTA) /FriSiRE $48
investing activities (113,379) 10,800
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEENIRERE
(Repayment of)/proceeds from loan from REFERERER (BE)
the non-controlling interest TS 2 718 31(c) (2,220) 2,254
Repayment of borrowings BIREE 31(c) - (7,890)
Principal elements of lease payment HEaELAEI M 2R 31(0) (29,899) (25,346)
Payment for repurchase of the Company’s [BIFE A A Bl BAD Z IR
shares 26(a) (78,059) -
Dividends paid to the shareholders of BB ABRENRR
the Company (140,810) (88,016)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest BTG E A IE TR R
in a subsidiary R E (2,227) -
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection 17158 B8 B 7 2247 R 1D PR IS =N 5B
with the exercise of share options 46,146 -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFPTAIRE R (207,069)  (118,998)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&KIBSSEYHILINHEEE 414,600 1,098,693
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHRERIREEEY
of the year 3,230,005 2,160,192
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and RERIREZEEBYN
cash equivalents ERWE (B8 158,136 (28,880)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRRERNEZEY
of the year 25 3,802,741 3,230,005

The notes on pages 85 to 184 are an integral part of these consolidated ZE85F 184 M LT S IBRERWE P B
financial statements. 7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

85

GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-
sale ("E-payment Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance
and installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"”), financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") and post-employment benefit
obligation, which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2020:

Definition of Material — amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

. Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9

° Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for this reporting period and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of adopting these new accounting standards and
interpretations on its current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer

to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet

respectively.

(ii) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below),

after initially being recognised at cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(iii) Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has joint ventures. Interests
in the joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (iv) below), after initially being recognised

at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividend
received or receivable from associated companies are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of

the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated company are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in this entity. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2.10.

2

FTEETHREHRE @
22 FERAKRERZREEHE @

(i)

(iv)

e ZHE

RIESEMBREELFI5E
MeaZH HE5E8ZHD
CEENEARRARKERGE
NE BESERFEEZRES
NWER#ERMEFME > MIF
EERHNEZREE - AEE
BEAERB - REaE N
BaRGaEEEERENREK
MTHIBBEREER EAK-
(BZ(iv))

BmBatE
RERDES 5 REVI
PR AFE D BE 1R T LU BE DUFE
BEEBRERRESFE W
KPP B R S F W E R R
RgRERDH 2 E W PFr
HEMEEmKRDES SN
BRBE AT RETEE DR
BIREERNRL -

EAREE DU D EARE
BENERSFNABEEGER
WD (BEEMHEMEIRR
REBWMIE) B> AEEF
BREIE-—DEIR RIFEE
ERAREMERAERTAX
EEE

AEBERAEBERBBRZH
EERSRRENHE > QR
RAEEBRNRZFERNEGR
me RBHEETEHHE IR
FZREAEBERTITEEE
IR E R FR &R o MU=
ENRWRE TG R
ERFBELE LURRFRALRE
EFTERERE M — 2o

Mg 2 A RN ENIREE
IRIEMI5E2.1 0P 2 B SR #E 17 0B
BRI -

BERKBKARAE —TTEER 88



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2

89

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners

of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
the consolidated income statement. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by

applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associated company is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of an
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates or the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement, within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within

“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVOCI are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

(d)

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal and partial disposal of foreign

operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBEREE ®
POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 ME- -BEKREE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5% - 10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment  18% - 25%

Plant and equipment 9% - 33%

Motor vehicles 18% - 25%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

()

Brand names, contractual customer

relationships and others

Brand names, contractual customer relationships
and others acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the acquisition date.
These intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected lives from 5 to 10 years to
allocate the cost of them.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHME®
POLICIES (continued)

29 IERME (Bt ABEZBE)

2.9 Land use rights (included in right-of-use assets)

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 20 to 50 years. Depreciation of this right-of-use
assets is charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when there
is impairment, the impairment is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill not subject to amortisation is tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to

account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

o Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

M

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in “other (losses)/gains,
net”. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

)

Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in “other (losses)/gains,
net”. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in “other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “other (losses)/gains,
net” in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

2.114 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and bills receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

(c)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Post employment pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the

projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are

used.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHME®
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued) 221 BEERH @
(b) REBEREZEE @

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in “employment benefit reserve” in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
“reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as past service costs.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of
the Pension Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post employment pension obligations

(0

(continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 22% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHEHE®
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Share-based payments 2.22 YR AERZ M
(a) Equity-settled share based payment (a) ERFBEURGHERS
transactions 1135
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based REBHT—EBERALGE
compensation plan, under which the entity receives UEMABERZCMEE
services from employees as consideration for equity OB BERNTHEHESER
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of RBIERIAINAEEET TR
the employee services received in exchange for the (BRE NRE AB|EE
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. HEREMESEERBNA
The total amount to be expensed is determined by TFEDESRARAZ - HIERZ
reference to the fair value of the options granted: NEEEE H2REFXENE
RENATEETE :
including any market performance conditions; - BEEAMBRREER;
excluding the impact of any service and non- - FEEEARBRIES
market performance vesting conditions (for BRERBEG (HWNE
example, remaining an employee of the entity FAATHR—ESEHME
over a specified time period); and EEMAZERNE
8); &
including the impact of any non-vesting - BREEAEGBHREN
conditions. FEo
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period WHASZNEBHARNES  ER
which is the period over which all of the specified BeSEERBREFSREN
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. HRRE o
At the end of each reporting period, the Group RERSHBEER £5&H
revises its estimates of the number of options that SESTHHEREBIFMIFRER
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing RR 745 16% 1 T8 BA A% 57 JaB B0 B A 1
performance and service conditions. It recognises FENMG -HNGZalm R
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if R R ARG FHERETNF
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a 2 (nAE)  TE#ERIEEAERE
corresponding adjustment to equity. FHEE o
When the options are exercised, the Company issues REREETERE KA %
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly TG, - B UNPTIERIEN A
attributable transaction costs are credited to share EFMEEREBLRZZMAEE
capital (nominal value) and share premium. ARE (EE) RERMHEHEE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among

group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBREE®
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 W AHESD
(i) Sales of goods () ERFE
The Group develops and sells E-payment Terminals AEEHRHERBEETIN
products. Sales are recognised when control of the AR EE on o BB fn BV IR A aE
products has transferred, being when the products are BRNEDHEE NEERM
delivered to the customers, the customer has accepted FER EPFEEZEMNERESE
the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation FERPEMERNERETE
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the £
products.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are B EMXNE IR %
delivered as this is the point in time that the 6 A UE AR R EIE (B
consideration is unconditional because only the HA Y =R A0 B9 B R R #R bR AN) o
passage of time is required before the payment is due. BRI HE a0 23 PR UK ©
A contract liability is recognised when a customer BREENAEBRDAERU
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay A RELZNRERHEGL
consideration and the amount is already due, before FEZNNEBEREC AR
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group B AEBRNGEEEAR
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables KPRIBESHNBEAEME
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in JER A FE ST RRIE T B FE IR
the consolidated balance sheet. o
(ii) Provision of services (i) IERARTS
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the RERBPAIBWR AN IRERS
accounting period in which the services are rendered. Nt ARRER - HERE
Revenue from maintenance and installation services HERB 2 WA IBEN R SR
is recognised based on the actual service provided as BREHZRYE (FREMHEDN
at the end of the reporting period as a proportion of MRz —31H) B> BA
the total services to be provided because the customer RAEERKREESRFERZ
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. M2 o
2.25 Interest income 2.25 FI2IKA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis FEWAUB RN XL E LA
using the effective interest method. 0
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (as lessee)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received and makes any adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHME®
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 TH&Y (FEFAAN) @)

2.26 Leases (as lessee) (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
o prepayment, and
o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises and
all leases of low-valued assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.27 Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated income statement when there is a
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received which
generally occurs upon the receipt of the approval of tax
refund from the local tax bureau.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in “other
income” in the consolidated income statement at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all the
attached conditions.

2.29 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"),
HK$, United States dollar (“US$"), European
dollar ("EUR") and Indian Rupee (“INR"). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR, and there
are no significant assets and liabilities that are
denominated in other currencies. The Group
is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities denominating in
a currency other than HK$, RMB, US$, EUR and
INR, which are the functional currencies of the
major operating companies within the Group.
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$
is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the
same functional currency. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$6,753,000 (2019:
HK$6,322,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of RMB denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the current account with a
related party.

As at 31 December 2020, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$4,258,000 (2019:
HK$2,656,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and the current
account with a related party.

For the companies with RMB as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$15,434,000 (2019:
HK$14,238,000) higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents and the current
account with a related party.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with EUR as their functional
currency
As at 31 December 2020, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$729,000 (2019:
HK$1,906,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

For the company with INR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2020, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against INR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$7,894,000 (2019:
HK$3,716,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

(ii)  Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The income and operating cash flows of the
Group and the Company are both substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Both the Group and the Company have
no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for deposits placed with banks and loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits and
loan to an investment accounted for using the
equity method (2019: same) had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and equity
of the Group would have been HK$14,939,000
(2019: HK$13,302,000) higher/lower
respectively, due to higher/lower interest income
earned on the deposits and loan receivable
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balances (2019: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iij) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)
As at 31 December 2020, there was no
outstanding interest-bearing borrowing in the
Group's consolidated balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
borrowings were all issued at fixed rates which
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
Management considers the fair value interest
rate risk is insignificant to the Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets
at FVPL, restricted cash, short-term bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at FVPL (Note
17(a)), other financial assets at amortised cost (Note
21), trade and bills receivables (Note 21), restricted
cash (Note 23), short-term bank deposits (Note 24),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) and loan to an
investment accounted for using the equity method
(Note 34(b)) represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i)  Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments. It
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted 49.7% (2019: 54.6%) of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.
They accounted for approximately 30.8%
(2019: 39.9%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2020. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods of the
Group and from the provision of services are
subject to the expected credit loss model. While
other financial assets at amortised cost, bills
receivables, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. The Group measures the
expected credit losses on a combination of both
individual and collective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
w S MR M

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBRRERE®
3.1 HBEREZE @&
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEEE ®
Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) ZFREERE @)
Trade receivables (continued) FEURBRTR (@)
Measurement of expected credit loss on KB ETEREE
individual basis VS|

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31

December 2020, the balance of loss allowance in 5T o

respect of these individually assessed receivables
was HK$88,399,000 (2019: HK$81,616,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and loss allowance in
respect of the individually assessed receivables as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

HRENGEEYHHEH#
WEFIEKEFESE
K &% ] BY BE R & Tt 5t
1% R 8 £ 5 B 1F W (E B
KRB _TF+Z
BA=+—H> @t
Z FE WK BY 18 K 2 1 AR

¥87388,399,000% 7T (—
=T —HE 81,616,000

7o) °

TRZARN

BB H
kEZZEE—-—HhhE+ZA
=+— B @5 5Tk FE IR
TALEE’]E%ENU{E&?E%

ZEEEREE
As at 31 December
m+ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
—ETH = — N4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Gross carrying amount RE4AE 88,399 81,616
Loss allowance BREH (88,399) (81,616)
Net carrying amount REFEE - -
Measurement of expected credit loss on LB EFEHIEE
collective basis £578

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively

assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking BED

into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the

receivables.

BHEEGERETGIEH
FREWRIREZERMEE
I E IR & E R E
R CRER=EN RS
EITHHE HEFEAEE
WETAE M > MR FERRIE &
BB X E A AR R
MEREFENEEH

BHEEHEERERE-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed receivables was HK$26,916,000 (2019:
HK$11,958,000) based on expected credit loss
rates up to 5.99% (2019: up to 4.10%) applied
on different groupings.

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits, bills receivables, loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method, financial assets at FVPL and other
financial assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, bills receivables, loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method, financial
assets at FVPL and other financial assets at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKEE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEREE @&
(c) Liquidity risk © ;m@ﬁﬁﬁ'/—lﬂ""

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$3,802,741,000 (2019:
HK$3,230,005,000) that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2020, no banking facilities was
available to the Group (2019: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 BEEABEERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEREMBEZ ®
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © FTEETREE
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative —F%ﬁl?‘)fmn BEHGTHEE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping MEBHBND BAEE E'J
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet 3!5 mEEmaEs A BRI
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts B4R TRMIEEN TR
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted BEHNERBRBTERE AR
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their RN EERA R+ 2@
carrying values as the impact of discounting is not BAREAREE N HERE
significant. Bo
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Dir—E —ERE AENE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

At 31 December 2020 A _EEF+A=+—H
Trade and bills payables (TR R T 24k 1,371,267 - - 1,371,267
Other payables and accruals HAE BRI BT RE 242,088 3,994 - 246,082
Lease liabilities HEaE 34,974 65,158 63,862 163,994
Total “ast 1,648,329 69,152 63,862 1,781,343
At 31 December 2019 A _E-NFE+ZA=+—H
Trade and bills payables FE(TER R JE T SR 4 1,382,487 - 1,382,487
Other payables and accruals HAnEI AR R st FE 177,898 2,274 - 180,172
Borrowings (EL- - 2,457 - 2,457
Lease liabilities HEaE 29,695 55,494 70,290 155,479
Total “ast 1,590,080 60,225 70,290 1,720,595
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowings of the Group. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus total debt.

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio was as
follows:

3

R EIE @)
3.2 BAREE

FEBRERREDRAER K
EEEEEANBENARESER
EELFECENT AR REREHE
¥ LR 7 HoAth F) 2 48 BY & 5 2R 7
mo W B AR REBRGRELUR D
BT

RERNRABRELER FEEY
AEARREZNRENEE -RE
FAEREFTRE - BTHROALE
BELRDER-

AEBEREFERILEXEEE
Ao ZIERZERBEAFUERR
B E - EEABREELEEE
E-BABBRIINGEEERAR
KD EREBEEE -

rEEBR-_S-EF+-B=+—
HIEEEE R_Z2—h&E+_A
=+—H EXaELEEROT

As at

31 December 2019

RIZZE—h%F

+ZR=+—H

HK$'000

FAT

Borrowings == 2,254
Total debt EI548%8 2,254
Total equity TR AREE 4,739,352
Total capital BARAEER 4,741,606
Gearing ratio BERAEEX 0.05%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBERBRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 RFEME
(i)  Fair value hierarchy () 2RFEER
The table below analyses the Group's financial TRAMAERNRZZEZIZF
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December rERZE—-AF+ZA=+—H
2020 and 2019 by level of valuation techniques used DUEt &R FEFT B G E T
to measure fair values. Such inputs are categorised into EBHREDHNEATFEARESR
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: TRE-FRAB@AREIERR

FTEERANN=ERERIDT :

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HEEEXEERN TR
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). MHERE REAE) (B
—&R) ©
Inputs other than quoted prices included . BFREENE —HBNRE
within level 1 that are observable for the asset o EBEEREBBEBHN AR
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or RHE#ZE BER) EE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). (BPREEBHKRE) GIAEL
(B4R ©
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based - WIRBAEEWHE
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BMmEECHNEEXER
inputs) (level 3). M AER (Do #z
N AER) (B=4) °
The following table presents the Group's financial TRV AERRZZEZZF
assets that are measured at fair values as at 31 +ZA=+—HEAFEFE
December 2020. ZEMEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B1E -y H3E Fake)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAERT FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BATESIABRZ
through profit or loss TREE
- Unlisted investment fund —JEHREES - - 104,290 104,290
— Unlisted equity investment —JELTRAKE - - 25,830 25,830
Financial asset at fair value BATESARMEER
through other Wamz EmEE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity investment —JELmRAKE - - 2,467 2,467
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATEM@®
Fair value hierarchy (continued) () 2FEER@
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVAEBPR S —NE
assets and financial liability that are measured at fair +ZA=+—HEAFEFE
values as at 31 December 2019. ZEHMEEREMAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB EVE $B3E K
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT FAT FAET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial asset at fair value BATESIABRZ
through profit or loss TREE
- Unlisted investment fund —JEEHREES - - 104,707 104,707
Financial asset at fair value BATESARMEER
through other Wmz EMEE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity investment —JELTRAKE - - 10,433 10,433
There were no transfers of financial assets SREELREBEATEESH
and liabilities between the fair value hierarchy SEZERERALEER (Z
classifications during the year (2019: same). EBE—HEFL) o
(a) Financial instruments in Level 1 (@ F—E=HTAH
The fair value of financial instruments traded EETRTEEENSH
in active markets (such as publicly traded TEH (WM ABERXSENITE
derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is B EERSES) B
based on quoted market prices at the balance NEE RBIELERWNT
sheet date. The quoted market price used for EREABE R EER
financial assets is the current bid price. These ATEREBAEEE A
instruments are included in level 1. B-BEREITEs AE—
W o
HERKBHZARAT —ZTEFHR 124
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

()

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(b) Financial instruments in Level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for the unlisted equity investment and unlisted
investment fund.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3
financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2019: same).

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December
2020:

3

MHERMGEIE @

3.3 ATFEME @
(i) EHEAXT TN 215

IR FEE (F3)E)
BURMBEIBETR T AEGEEDN
BEMERNTBEMRREESM
ESMMREEFEEAER
filF o A BE > iy (B 32 17 3 %
EBE (CE—NF FL)e
TREWNHE_ZZEEF+T
B=+—HLEFRFEIBETH
TEMEES:

Financial asset

at fair value
through other
Financial assets at fair value comprehensive
through profit or loss income
BEATEA
Hittz2®E
BATEEA P
BiREZEMEE EWMEE
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
investment equity equity
fund investment investment
L L L
REES RxRE RxEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZZF—HF—Hz#&H 104,707 - 10,433
Addition (Note 17(b)) AE (HE17(0)) - 22,495 -
Fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation ~ RIEE NN EHATE
recognised in profit or loss (B548) /lhas (Mi3E17(a))
(Note 17(a)) (7,130) 1,889 -
Fair value loss on revaluation REMZEKEFEDN
recognised in other comprehensive  EfHATERE (i517(b)
income (Note 17(b)) - - (7,966)
Exchange realignment R AR 6,713 1,446 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZE&+-A=+—-Hz
£EeR 104,290 25,830 2,467
Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in ~ si45 5 AR 24t 6s
the consolidated income statement A ERA
attributable to balances held at BB AR (B8 /&
the balance sheet date (7,130) 1,889 -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBERBRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEME @
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) 1EHEAXT TGN 25
unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued) B FlEHE (F3E) )
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREJINEEZZ—HAET+Z
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December B=+—HIEFREIEEM
2019: TENES:

Financial asset

Financial asset at fair value
at fair value through other
through ~ comprehensive

profit or loss income
BATERA
BRATERA HiE|
BRz Gy
EMEE SHEE
Unlisted Unlisted
investment equity
fund investment
L L
REES REKE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-hE—B—Bz&8 94,058 11,870
Addition RE - 803
Fair value loss on revaluation REMEARGEEINEEATESE
recognised in other comprehensive (MF=E17(b))
income (Note 17(b)) - (2,240)
Fair value gains on revaluation recognised in R ERABRNEEA AR
profit or loss (Note 17(a)) (fizE17(a)) 12,774 -
Exchange realignment [EREE (2,125) -
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE—hE+ZA=+—Hz&## 104,707 10,433
Unrealised gains recognised in EE 0N AR
the consolidated income statement RizaWa®n
attributable to balances held at ‘Rz KRR E
the balance sheet date 12,774 -

127 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKEE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEMGE @

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)
Quantitative information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(a) Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income — unlisted equity
investment
The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted equity investment as at

(i) EHEXT AT HA Bt

BIRFEEE (F3E) (@)
EREBREATROEHRE A
BHWATESE (E38) WES
Bh

(@) BAFESARMEEK
w2 EMEE—IF LR
FTRE
RIBZZBERZE—N
F+ZA=+—H %L

31 December 2020 and 2019 are: MRAEEGHERANE
ERNTBERRBRA
At 31 December
R+ZRA=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2020 2019
HERM FOERBAYE —E”% “2-hE
Discounted cash flow analysis Pre-tax discount rate 17.7% 18.5%
WIRREREDN AR X
Terminal growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
KIEHRE
Compound annual growth rate 23.9% 23.9%
HAFHRER

As at 31 December 2020, the pre-tax
discount rate used to compute the fair value
is 17.7% (2019: 18.5%). If the discount rate
shifted upward by 1%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$280,000
(2019: HK$821,000) lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

RZIE_FF+ - H
=t+—H> ARFELF
ENRATEIRER17.7%
(ZE—NHFE 18.5%)°
MEZBEIRE 1% W H
HMEERENEEEAT
[£280,0008 T (ZZE—H
£ :821,000587T) o MR Al
MIREES ATFEMIE-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

(b)

(9]

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted investment fund

The key unobservable assumption used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31

3 HEEKEE @

3.3

DFEGE @

Gii) EHEATTHEZEA E1F
BIRFEEE (F3E) (@)

()

BATFEFIA R ZEH
BE-FLHREEE
RIBZZBERZE—N
F+ZA=+—H %L

December 2020 and 2019 are: MREESHERBNE
BEARTERRERRS
At 31 December
w+ZB=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2020 2019
fHERAM AHRRE AR - Jamp “E2-NEF
Net asset value (note) N/A N/A N/A
BEFE W) TEA RERA EA
Note: M5k -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has determined
that the audited net asset value approximates fair
value of the unlisted investment fund after applying a
portfolio discount of 10% (2019: 10%).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted equity investment

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted equity investment
as at 31 December 2020 and 30 March 2020
(investment acquisition date) are:

©

RIBE-_ZF+_RB=+
ArEEETEERRSE
HEFEI0% B KBEX
BEEFEHEENRIELTR
EEEMAFE (ZE—H
F:110%) o

BRFEAARDZEM
BE—FLHRFIRE

RZEZZTHE+ZA
—t+—BARZEZ2HF
ZA=+TH (REKRE
B) IFEmRARER

BERANEERTEHEER
[EE-F=
At 31 December At 30 March
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2020 2020
RIEZEH RZEZEH
EERM AEBREBAYURE +ZRA=+—H =HA=+H
Market comparable Adjusted price-to-earnings ratio 24.0 11.9
companies model multiple (times)
MH AL AR HEMREEH (E)
Binominal option pricing model Risk free rate 3.0% 3.1%
“EAGEERER =R A X
Expected volatility of 50.4% 57.7%

underlying share

HERARR 17 B TR HA K 12
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.4

3.5

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted equity investment (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the adjusted price-
to-earnings ratio multiple used to compute the
fair value is 24.0 times. If the adjusted price-to-
earnings ratio multiple shifted downward by 1
time, the impact on the profit or loss would be
HK$1,241,000 lower. The lower the adjusted
price-to-earnings ratio multiple, the lower the
fair value.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost

The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying values:

Loan to an investment accounted for using the equity
method

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Trade and bills receivables
Restricted cash

Short-term bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

3 BEEABEERE®

3.3

34

3.5
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates (Note 3.1(b)(ii)). The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the balance sheet date.

(b) Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net
realisable value when there is an objective evidence that
the cost of inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or partially
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost
of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated
costs to be incurred to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgment is required. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.

(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the current tax and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EEG AT R FIER

AR MRS M WA AL 5t K FI i
DBDERBEECREREMEER  SFERR
HREEARBRATHEEAEHERENE
fFmfE

AEBELBBARRNMGET RRRK %
MR E > FRER S st E LD BB
BRGRER - TXHINBEBAARE
BRAN T BV HFEEELAEGRN
SREEFRERBENME KRR

() MEWRIERE
FEBERBENERRBHRES
BEEZ RRHYEWFIARES R
B (EE3.1(b)0) ~REEH &
EERBEEEBECERERN TR
MUK pyBEME (A 5T FIE 2 F R &R
EESEREZ AR

(b) FEEHE
FEDEMARASRFEME
ZERBEAKR - HAETBEERR
TREEMRASNAEWRE AIREFE
AN E] ST FE HEFEHE
B A A MERENEE T
AIPT BER REUW B 77 G Al 7k o i #E 1T
BHE R T ELERNMGE A M TR
FIEEBE R A sl F R As

RigelmAMENEESTERN

B i€ PI UK (O] B9 75 & Al s B 2R 1F U
BRI B o 10 1F A R F B B o A
EEEE (HhaiE) UEFH
W Bl ERRI R R B0 o

() FrSTRREIERR
HFSHEERAER F2FHE
DA E -FZRE T EHRE
BERAHEE - B REBB A
BRVEREETFAR  ARER
i 5 B E A R E B B A R AT
FISMBEEKRAER-

EEEEDARKEREIERER
#0ia F LAHR 85 B By 1 = ER a0 P i AR
MBEBER ARE TEREERE
KRR BOVEILEFTISINE E T UL
8o BIREABERAIBENR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

gkt e

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 5

GAINS, NET

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of E-payment
Terminals products and the provision of maintenance and
installation services. Revenue, other income and other (losses)/
gains, net recognised during the year are as follows:

WA ~ ELAth U A R ELAth (548) Uk
e X1

Zkﬁliyﬁié%fh‘iaﬁ??zﬁ%@ﬂaéuu

&%—E{/\IE %&

ERB-RARFEERE

Eﬁm BIUTA ~ E A N\ R E A (B548) U
mOBEAW T ©

Year ended 31 December

HE+-BA=t—RHILEE

2020 2019

—_ —« —_= ﬂE :%—j}_’ﬂf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET

Revenue A

Sales of E-payment Terminals products THE B F IR IHE & 5,532,211 4,837,042

Provision of services MR 118,408 88,691

5,650,619 4,925,733

Other income Hik A

Interest income (note (i)) FEWA FFEEI)) 38,861 27,782

Subsidy income (note (ii)) FERRUA (FEEE(Gi) 17,658 17,474

Value-added tax refund (note (ii)) IERBR (BF5ED)) 13,845 14,263

Others Hth 7,474 19,537

77,838 79,056

Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (§548) Wz 928

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets BAFEFAB@Z

at fair value through profit or loss TREEZATE (518 E= (5,241) 12,774
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR Z W 3,126 -
(2,115) 12,774

Notes: M :

(i) The amount includes HK$247,000 interest income from a loan (i) HE_Z_ZF+_B=+—H %
to a joint venture for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: THEOERBEERBER E'] R
HK$153,000) (Note 34 (a)). WA %247, OOO/%TE (ZE2—h %

153,000 7T) (MIEE34(a)) ©
(i) The amounts mainly represent the Group's entitlement to value- (i) ZEBRFIEREAEERNRPEHEE R

added tax refund and government grants in relation to sales and
research and development of self-developed software products
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
grants.

"".:.

EEHTHERTEMMEZAMNIEER
BIMRMHBBA - Z@EBEWRAR
B AR SN 7 A R E AR £ o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 SEEH
The management reviews the Group's internal reporting in order EEEERNAEBEANIRSEUAFHERIR
to assess performance and allocate resources. The management THREER EEEREBERATESH
has determined the operating segments based on the internal ERUEHERBATHNRNLREMET
reports reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic EBEPE - AEEFERETETFIZMNE
decisions. The Group is principally engaged in the E-payment MARREE REEERAARE
Terminals solutions business, and the management considers that KEE—XEBEDE-
the Group operates in one single business segment.
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (excluding REBFERES -HEH (FE B
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), the United States of America (the BERIN  EARBRANNLE -BEE
“US") and ltaly. The management assesses the performance of the s AEREERAZEB AWM
Group from a geographic perspective based on the locations of BTG AEBRNKIR
the subsidiaries in which revenues are generated.
The management assesses the performance of the operating BEEREBESBLE RN, (BB st
segments based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/ STEEE D ENRIER -
(loss).
An analysis of the Group's turnover and results for the year by REMFEFEREDBASNAEBRE X
segment is as follows: BEREBDWWT
Year ended 31 December 2020
HECZ_ZE+-A=1+-HLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
E (&%
PR
AR  EEREM %6 X7 &8 oL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TERT FERT FTERT FET TER
Turnover from external customers REMBERNELE 652,424 4,219,244 508,347 270,604 - 5,650,619
Inter-segment turnover NEEEER 3,700,974 497,671 - - (4,198,645) -
Total turnover marn 4353308 4,716,915 508,347 270604 (4,198,645) 5,650,619
Segmental earnings/(losses) before interest HERAEZE RIE TER
expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation £ 35A1E R,/ (5518)
("EBITDA"/"(LBITDA)"), excluding (TEBITDAL/T (LBITDA) 1)
impairment of goodwill (FEEBERE) 594,986 696,493 (151,230) 19,293 (17,259) 1,142,283
Depreciation (Note 7) IE (5E7) (38,582) (6,175) (8,031) (3,127) - (55,915)
Amortisation (Note 7) B (at7) - (2,779) - (1,718) - (4,497)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 7) BERE (F:E7) - - - (14,699) - (14,699)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) PEEEEN/ (F8) 556,404 687,539 (159,261) (251) (17,259) 1,067,172
Finance costs HRER (8,285)
Share of results of investments accounted BEGAANRNREEE
for using the equity method (6,046)
Profit before income tax BRETISRAT A 1,052,841
Income tax expense FrisiRfS (148,991)
Profit for the year FERA 903,850
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SDEEH®
Year ended 31 December 2019
BEZ-AET_A=+—HLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (BB
el
BERS  BEREHM £ EAF i EakE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHER FHER FiER TET TR
Turnover from external customers REIDPEEHNEEE 950,668 3,393,373 345,962 235,730 - 4,925,733
Inter-segment turnover DEBEEE 2,876,861 332,932 - - (3,209,793 -
Total turnover REEE 3,827,529 3,726,305 345,962 235,730 (3209,793) 4,925,733
Segmental EBITDA/(LBITDA), excluding Y4EEBITDA /(LBITDA)
impairment of goodwill (FEEEERE) 293,823 616,964 (47,312) 11,090 (42,317) 832,248
Depreciation (Note 7) I8 (M5E7) (35.383) (4,461) (4,815) (3,023) - (47,682)
Amortisation (Note 7) B8 (rEt7) - (2,840) - (1,708) - (4,548)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 7) BERE (H:7) - (18,392) - - - (18,392)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) DELEERN/ (558 258,440 591,271 (52,127) 6,359 (42,317) 761,626
Finance costs HHER (5,155)
Share of results of investments accounted BREGANRNEEEE
for using the equity method (1,798)
Profit before income tax PRSI ATEA 754,673
Income tax expense FrigMms (129,809)
Profit for the year EEGEF 624,864
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and RIEZZEF+ZA=+—HNDEE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December ErRBBEURBEE_ZZF+ZA
2020 are as follows: = t+—HIEFEFERHEENAEN T !
As at 31 December 2020
RZE-2F+”-A=1+-H
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (B
el
aERN) FERHEM £S5 X7 1E8H k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHER FHER FHER THET
Segment assets NEEE 5,642,056 3,141,544 435,042 148,861 (1,730,444) 7,637,059
Segment liabilities NEaR 2,070,041 874,419 711,746 80,363  (1,673,082) 2,063,487
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SDEEH®
Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZZ-ZE+-AC+—-ALEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand ~ Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (B
PR
aERN) EFERHEM %H BEX# i k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHER FHET TET TET TER
Additions to non-current assets ERBEENFE 148,023 12,437 1,996 1,370 - 163,826
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and A _E—-NE+_B=+t—HHNDEE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December ENREEUEHEE _ZET—HE+_8
2019 are as follows: —t+—HIEFEFERBHEENSTEN T
As at 31 December 2019
RIZ-NE+ZB=+—H
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (BB
PR
BBk  BEKREHM E3E EAF i 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FER FTERT FER TET
Segment assets NEEE 4,690,411 2,736,147 307,446 136,852 (1,151,633) 6,719,223
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,913,480 676,292 423,642 78,772 (1,112,315) 1,979,871
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NE+_A=t+—-RLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (BB
PR
aERN  EEREM £S5 EAF g FakE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER FERT FTERT TER TER
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENRE 46,054 7,980 50,726 5,898 - 110,658
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In 2020, additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions
to property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (2019:
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and other non-
current assets).

In 2020, revenue of approximately HK$2,207,453,000 (2019:
HK$2,024,926,000) is derived from the largest customer,
representing 39.1% (2019: 41.1%) of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the Hong Kong operating segment (2019:
same); revenue of approximately HK$203,977,000 (2019:
HK$272,925,000) is derived from the second largest customer,
representing 3.6% (2019: 5.5%) of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the US operating segment (2019: the PRC
operating segment).

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and
Italy.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location, which
is determined by the geographical location in which the asset is
located, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
w S MR M

DEER @

A _E T CIERMEEARETES
EME - BERZEREEEAENTE
(ZEBE—NF NE -BERRE EBE
FRAEKREMIERENEE) o

A _E T F AHA2,207,453,0008
T (ZE— N4 2,024,926,00058 7T) #Y
WATDRERAEL » ZE WAL LEW
AM39.1% (ZE—NFE 1 41.1%) L
BREBEBDT (CTE—NFE BL) -
A #49203,977,0008 T (ZE—HE
272,925,000 7T) WIRA TS ZRBE AR
P ZEWAMGEIAN % (ZE—N
FI55%) WEBREEEXED (CTF
—NE  FEEHDE) o

MR TEEFRENFEN FRGEEHH
WERATTE R

AERBETEUEBR FE ZEKREKRFA
7y T i3t o

RZBEEMEME DNEERBFERHE
EHHWMT :

As at 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEF “ET-NHF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

FRBEE

Non-current assets
PRC, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

Hong Kong and others B REAM
us ESEl
Italy BAF

E (BB

=153 529,418 368,433
76,791 57,257
42,109 48,144
33,625 48,686

681,943 522,520
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEUEEISHMAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative FFAHEMA HERSZ ITHASZ KRS
expenses and net impairment losses on financial assets are MEEZRBERHEEINAOT

analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
“EZEF —T—NE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

Costs of inventories sold (Note 20) EXRFEMA (5E20) 3,060,546 2,848,167
Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 20) [REEF E#E (MY5520) 153,182 38,986
Direct written-off of obsolete inventories (Note 20) E#ZiiHfEERS (M5E20) 13,634 -
Employee benefit expenses EBEEMNAX (BEESWD)

(including Directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (fFz%10) 728,035 629,726
Research and development costs RN 460,772 398,759
Sales commission HERE 49,268 39,686
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BB RZEITE (EE14)

(Note 14) 16,287 14,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15(b)) BEGRREITE (EE150)) 39,628 33,071
Short-term lease expenses (Note 15(b)) AR EEAR (FsE15(b)) 8,859 1,820
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mEEgHE (PsE16) 4,497 4,548
Remuneration to the Company’s auditor A BIZBENEN &

— Group's annual audit and —AEEFEZ# R EMEA

other audit related services Z SRR BY AR TS 2,420 2,360
— audit services for the subsidiaries of the Group —REE B A B ZEARTS - 268
- non-audit services —IEZEUARTS 110 685
Remuneration to other auditors HhZz 2 Eml & 647 560
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEYZE -BEREREN

plant and equipment, net (Note 31(b)) 18, (W) > 358
(FI5E31(b)) 127 (2,738)

Net impairment losses on financial assets SREEREFERE (:E21()

(Note 21(c))

— on individual basis — {8 Bl B £ 50,856 55,498
— on collective basis — R HEI R 14,227 10,416
Impairment of goodwill (Note 16) 2R E (fisE16) 14,699 18,392
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10

7,946,000 7T) ©

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) 8
The net foreign exchange gains recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$44,400,000 (2019: losses of HK$7,946,000).

FINANCE COSTS 9

M E A

ShEEFURE S (B548)

HE _ 2 _ZF+_B=+—HLt=E
ERITHERTRININESZTRES
44,400,000 (ZE—NE: HEA

Year ended 31 December

HE+-B=+—RILEE

2020 2019

—EISE —E—hE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENEER 7,045 3,783
Interest expense on borrowings BENMEER 415 377
Others Hth 825 995
8,285 5,155

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

10 EEREIFEX (BEEEND)

Year ended 31 December

HE+-B=t—HILEE

2020 2019

—BIRF “TNEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Wages and salaries TEKFH® 655,112 553,683

Social security and pension costs HERERRKSHA 32,721 36,879
Employee benefit obligation — defined EERHNEE - A EEF T2

benefit plans 1,397 478

Share-based payment expenses iz &R 38,805 38,686

728,035 629,726
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 included three
Directors (2019: three) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 36. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2019: two) individuals during the year are as
follows:

10

EEEMRAX (BEEEHE) @

hmREIRAL
REBRHE_ZE-_FTFE+"F=+—H
tEEREERSHFATEE=Z2EE (T
E—NE =4 HEMWEERWE36D
MARMR - REEENGR TMa (ZF
—NE  mME) ATHMESHEFIWT :

Year ended 31 December

HE+-—B=t+—RAILEE

139

2020 2019
—EIEFE ZZ—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYIER 8,526 6,743
Pension cost FERY NI BIN 57 72
Share-based payment expenses BHRZHER 6,028 7,456
14,611 14,271
The emoluments fell within the following bands: =T AR R
Number of individuals
AE
2020 2019
—EITE —T—hHF
Emolument bands Bl <2 48 B!
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,0017& 75 —5,500,0007 75 -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,0017& 75— 6,000,000/ 75 1 -
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,0017 7% —9,500,00078 75 1 1
2 2
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1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FriSMBAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
“EZEF “T—NE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

Current income tax on profit for the year FE A Z BENEAFT 158

— China corporate income tax — R ZEPAER 76,159 41,699

- Hong Kong profits tax —&BFER 118,883 103,349

— Overseas profits tax —BINFIEIR 5,134 12,885
Tax incentives for research and development 17 AR B 5 R AR 32 B9 B /BB A B L

expenses available for the subsidiaries MEEANREBEER

incorporated in the PRC (30,176) (21,416)
Over provision in prior year, net BEFEEBREEE B (2,993) (597)
Total current income tax BVERFT S R 48 %8 167,007 135,920
Deferred income tax RIEFT1SHR (18,016) 6,111)
Income tax expense FriEfsz 148,991 129,809
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% BHE_ZTEZHFET_A=+—HILEHE"
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year EEBFNERBEGTERREF 2=
ended 31 December 2020. 16.5% (ZZE—F 1 16.5%) fEHEHE -
Taxes on overseas profits have been calculated at the rates of tax WINRFNNRIBERBAEE K EZERM
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based TENEEENRITEN  2RERIBG
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect BRI
thereof.
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1

141

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective
from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law"”), companies in the PRC are
subject to income tax of 25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Computer
Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is located
in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone. Pursuant to Caishui
[2016] Circular 49 jointly released by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC, management performed self-assessment
on the eligibility for the tax incentives. Management estimated
that Pax Computer Shenzhen was qualified as a National Key
Software Enterprise and entitled to the preferential corporate
income tax rate of 10% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: same). The application of the preferential tax rate is a
critical accounting estimate as set out in Note 4(c) to these
consolidated financial statements.

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in
the respective jurisdictions as follows:

1

FrigAx @

BER_ZFEZNEF-—A—HEHHF
TEMRB/IRE ((REMIRIZE) »RER
Bl BMAN25% B FT1S IR > BRIFEERIZXRE
e

RABIMBAB BBt EEEM RN B
BB (TG EstEHEORY) AR EYNE
A E - RIS IR RFBEF  ER
BRNMNEZEGURFEITEMEEL
EREE S MR BARR([2016)495R B A1 > B 1E
BHREEENERETERTGH BE
BstEEstER R IBEREEN G
EHEZIEF+ A=+ —HIEEF
EEHEZHEIO%EELEMERE T
—NEFEBL) - WMEEFHERK PN T
AOFTE FERESREAETEgsthste

AEEBRFTISI AT S A B MR IR R B E A
REERERENGHER G A NEF
HMKRFAERIERTRENEZRNT

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—BIRF "“E—hEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before income tax FRPTSMR AR T 1,052,841 754,673
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 3R S BRI S & 4 i F B B
profits in the respective countries BN ENRIE 137,536 116,743
Income not subject to taxation BEMIRAIULA (8,538) (2,883)
Tax incentives for research and development 74 A B0 5 17 AR 32 BV [ /B A Bl RL A B2
expenses available for the subsidiaries BERNREEE (1)
incorporated in the PRC (note) (30,176) (21,416)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AR TS = A eI R AR 2 12,676 23,394
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was  SREERIELEFTIS R AR IEES 18
recognised 37,145 14,877
Withholding tax FENIRIE 3,341 -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B RB{ERER Z MIEE1E - (309)
Over provision in prior year, net BEFEBREEE T (2,993) (597)
148,991 129,809
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1M1 FiSHREX @

Note:  The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority Mzt : ANEEMURFBENMNE A E
relating to the research and development expenses of the ZERESTPEMRBIKEBEMN—
subsidiaries in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the Group ERBEBEZE - REBHERBERR
may claim an additional tax deduction up to 75% (2019: 75%) B KAEERFHEINEERES
of the relevant research and development expenses incurred in a REFANEBMAEERNTS% (2
year approved by the PRC tax authority. —NEF 1 75%) > B EIFR 5 RR

o

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 13.1% for the year BHE_Z_ZSF+_HA=+—HLEEFE>

ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 15.5%). The change is caused I AREA13.1% (CE—NF .

by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in 15.5%) o BB RPN AL R ER K E

the respective countries. REAIBABENHEHIRELAIR -

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SREF
(a) Basic (a) Hzs
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREABANEAREFE AR
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company by HEAFERFGFRNEETEER
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue MEFEHEETE-

during the year.

Year ended 31 December

HE+-BA=+—RAILEE

2020 2019
—EITFE —ZT—hHF
Profit attributable to the owners of KNBFEAEMERF (FET)
the Company (HK$'000) 900,123 623,873
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 217 & @R MEFHH (TR
in issue (thousand shares) 1,087,290 1,100,194
Basic earnings per share attributable to RABIFBEABLESRERET
the owners of the Company (HK$ per share) (&8&#&7T) 0.828 0.567
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

143

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares for the
period) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the calculation
of diluted earnings per share was based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company and the adjusted
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
assuming the conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares, which was calculated as follows:

12 SRENw
(b) 7

ERETEMNVAESIASBRE
MAPTAERBEEH VRIS ERU
REDHTEERNMEFIIE A
ABRE-HABTHENENG
BRBRRE - TLBREMS WA R
TERBREMNESBENEREE
SHEOLUEENRATE (ERER
B IR BB T THE) BERRN
B - LS AFENRNEE A
BREREETEREEETHR
DB ELEE -

HE-S-SE+-A=+—HL
Eﬁ‘tkﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁh
B AR R e 18 28 0 10 B 5

e L&ﬁEﬁﬂm%ﬁ %L
EETE STE RN

Year ended
31 December
2020
BE_TZHF
+ZBA=+—H
IFE
Profit attributable to the owners of RABFEAEMGRER (FET)
the Company (HK$'000) 900,123
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B217 & @R INE TS (TA)
in issue (thousand shares) 1,087,290
Adjustments for share options TEBREEL AR (TR
(thousand shares) 5,827
Weighted average number of S RGIEREEF 1Y BB A N T 19 8
ordinary shares for diluted (F5&)
earnings per share (thousand shares) 1,093,117
Diluted earnings per share attributable to AR BFE AELEGREERT
owners of the Company (HK$ per share) (AT 0.823

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the share options
issued were not assumed to be exercised as they would have
an antidilutive impact to the basic earnings per share.
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13 DIVIDENDS 13 IR

In 2020, an interim dividend of HK$0.07 per ordinary share
(2019: HK$0.04 per ordinary share) was paid, amounting to
approximately HK$75,787,000 (2019: HK$44,008,000). A special
dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share (2019: Nil) was declared
on 18 December 2020, amounting to HK$109,284,000. The
amount was subsequently paid after the reporting period. A final
dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$0.06 per ordinary share), amounting
to HK$109,414,000 (2019: HK$65,256,000) (assuming no change
in the number of shares in issue on or before the record date for
determining the entitlement of final dividend), is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the proposed final dividend payable.

A TETEE > ARBEENHBERES
B iERR0.0758 T (CE—NTE EREE
f%0.047%87T) > A 8#975,787,0008 7T (Z
T — 4 44,008,000 7T) c-R_BE_ZE
F+-B+NBRERFHIREERE
BRRONOB T (TE—NE H) » BHEY
109,284,000 7t e Z R E BN AR EHE
TN -BREERREFEFASEEZEHE
ECETEF+ " HR=+—HILEEZK
R ESREER0I0ET (CTE—NE .
TR EAR0.06787T) » A %0109,414,000
BT (ZE—HE 65,256,000 7T) (BB
EERTROBENRAETERERE ZEF)
BIEEEE H S 2 ATl A H) - AR IR
A R BRFE R AR AR E o

Year ended 31 December

L
+TZA=+—HLEHFE
2020 2019

—EIRE —“T—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.07
(2019: HK$0.04) per ordinary share

B ERZER0.07BTTHEE
B (ZZE—H%F :0.0487T) 75,787 44,008

Special dividend declared of HK$0.10 (2019: Nil) B EIRERZERR0.10EBTHERRE

per ordinary share (ZEB—-N%F: 109,284 -
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.10 FREBI0N0BITHEZERR
(2019: HK$0.06) per ordinary share GE (ZE—HFE . 0.06587T) 109,414 65,256

294,485 109,264
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 YE- -BEKKE

Office
Land and  Construction Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings in process  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
Tk HE /NS
kS HEIR MELE HGEARRE RBERRE RE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FER FER FER FER THET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-T-EE
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount BRERE 1,165 24,623 9,238 16,766 15,139 2,679 69,610
Additions HE - 47,768 2,678 6,374 11,218 671 68,709
Disposals HE - - - (81) (27) (19) (127)
Depreciation (Note 7) E (5E7) (12) - (2,577) (6,735) (6,058) (905) (16,287)
Exchange realignment ERER 68 4,512 481 889 1,308 77 7,335
Closing net book amount ARRESE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
At 31 December 2020 RIBZBE
+ZA=+—H
Cost A 8,452 76,903 17,247 46,542 44,207 11,613 204,964
Accumulated depreciation and RstinERAE
impairment (7,231) - (7,427) (29,329) (22,627) (9,110 (75,724)
Net book amount RAEFE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Office
landand  Construction Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings in process  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
TR HE WAZE
1BF ERIR MEEE  HREREE BERRE AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTER FTET FTERT FTET TER
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_T-hE
+ZB=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRmEE 15,420 13,047 7,739 14,310 19,425 2,427 72,368
Additions HE . 12,044 4,169 8,919 1,417 1,479 28,028
Disposals HE (13,495) - - (246) - (137) (13,878)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (15E7) (128) - (2,484) (5.638) (5.324) (1,037) (14,611)
Exchange realignment EREE (632) (468) (186) (579) (379) (53) (2,297)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 1,165 24,623 9,238 16,766 15,139 2,679 69,610
At 31 December 2019 RIE—N&F
+ZA=1+—H
Cost A 7,922 24,623 13,712 39,179 30,351 10,433 126,220
Accumulated depreciation and R MERAE
impairment (6,757) B (4,474) (22,413) (15,212) (7,754) (56,610)
Net book amount REPE 1,165 24,623 9,238 16,766 15,139 2,679 69,610
Depreciation expense of HK$4,542,000 (2019: HK$5,946,000) FERM®4,542,0008 T (ZE—H

has been charged to cost of sales and HK$11,745,000 (2019:
HK$8,665,000) has been charged to administrative expenses.
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 15 BEEERAEREERRE
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () MiZEEEABEREIZNIE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following REBEABRITUTEBAE
amounts relating to the leases in respect of office premises, ME-ITHRAEEZHEBBHNR
factory and warehouses: 15 .

As at 31 December

w+=-—B=+—H
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
F#ET FExT
Right-of-use assets BEEFERE
Office premises FEYNESY/ES 85,315 77,349
Factory and warehouses (note) THEEE (HE) 205,822 143,998
291,137 221,347
Lease liabilities HEAR
Non-current JEBNHA 93,811 88,213
Current BNHEA 28,776 23,729
122,587 111,942
Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended BE_Z_ZEF+A=Z+—
31 December 2020 were HK$95,117,000 (2019 BIEFEEEFRENAIE A
HK$82,629,000), including the addition of land use right of 95,117,000 (Z&E—H & :
HK$58,306,000 (2019: Nil). 82,629,000/87T) @ BIEARE L HfE
FA1£58,306,0008 7T (ZE—HF :
#) o
Note: MEEE -
The balance includes the Group’s land use rights of A EERNEBR MNP R+ B
HK$132,435,000 (2019: HK$70,231,000) which are located in the FA#%132,435,0008 T (ZE— L& !
PRC and are held on leases of between 20 to 50 years. 70,231,000 7) » FEEHA20FEES50
E o
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

15 EEFTAEKEEERE®

(b) HA:v?I'I:Iu& EEED’UZ

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to the leases in respect of office premises,
factory and warehouses:

RAEWERITUTERIAEY
F IEmkEEZEERMHNIA:

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & EFEREITE (I5£7)
(Note 7)
— Office premises —MNEYE 30,610 27,628
— Factory and warehouses —THkEE 9,018 5,443
39,628 33,071
Interest expense (Note 9) A EREX (fT:E9) 7,045 3,783

Depreciation expense of HK$2,761,000 (2019:
HK$3,127,000) has been charged to cost of sales,
HK$13,517,000 (2019: HK$12,304,000) has been
charged to selling expenses and HK$23,350,000 (2019:
HK$17,640,000) has been charged to administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The expense related to short-term leases of HK$2,059,000
(2019: HK$1,820,000) is included in the selling expenses
and HK$6,800,000 (2019: Nil) is included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK$45,803,000 (2019:
HK$30,949,000), including the payment of principal
elements and interest elements of lease liabilities amounting
to HK$29,899,000 (2019: HK$25,346,000) (Note 31(c)) and
HK$7,045,000 (2019: HK$3,783,000) (Note 9) respectively
and the payment of short-term leases of HK$8,859,000
(2019: HK$1,820,000 (Note 7)).
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

(9]

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various office premises, factory and
warehouses. Rental contracts of office premises, factory and
warehouses are typically made for fixed periods of 1 year
to 10 years, but may have extension options as described in
(d) below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Extension options

Extension options are included in the factory and
warehouses leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations.

15 EEFTAEKEEERE®

(]

(d)

BERKEKARAT

AEFENEEEHUKRZEES
gn{E %R
AEEEEZEARIEME-TK
REE -WAEYE -IHKRBE
MEAESGHWHREZEESIEC
Fo MR AR E W T S (d)Fr L E &
EEE - HERRERER > &
FEBRRBER A - HE W
EEHBEAFANEAEEENRE
Bmi o TEENZE - HEEE
TERIFEENER-

TR
FEENTHRAEEEELNG2E
HEEE - NERRAEBRNEES
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149

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 HEHLEE

Contractual
customer
Brand relationships
Goodwill names and others Total
BHER
HE BiE MFEREM BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET THET
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_S_ZF
+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 28,833 8,996 18,110 55,939
Amortisation (Note 7) iy (E7) - (1,151) (3,346) (4,497)
Impairment (Note 7) BB (iEE7) (14,699) - - (14,699)
Exchange realignment ERELR 1,609 499 1,113 3,221
Closing net book amount HARARERE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
At 31 December 2020 RZIBZEHE
+=B=+—H
Cost DE 110,754 12,370 50,065 173,189
Accumulated amortisation and impairment &5t 85 &RE (95,011) (4,026) (34,188)  (133,225)
Net book amount REFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
Contractual
customer
Brand  relationships
Goodwill names  and others Total
BHER
S g BGRKREM BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FHET FAET
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_T—hEF
+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRYRERE 48,801 10,581 22,265 81,647
Amortisation (Note 7) By (st7) - (1,162) (3,386) (4,548)
Impairment (Note 7) BE (MEE7) (18,392) - - (18,392)
Exchange realignment FEREL (1,576) (423) (769) (2,768)
Closing net book amount HAREREFE 28,833 8,996 18,110 55,939
At 31 December 2019 NZE—h&E
+ZRA=+-H
Cost (DN 104,166 11,612 48,608 164,386
Accumulated amortisation and impairment £ 511 85 K (E (75,333) (2,616) (30,498)  (108,447)
Net book amount REVEE 28,833 8,996 18,110 55,939
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16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of HK$4,497,000 (2019: HK$4,548,000) has been
charged to administrative expenses.

The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of
CGUs, which represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's goodwill of HK$15,743,000
is attributable to the acquisition of the operation in Italy (2019:
HK$28,833,000).

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on a
value in use calculation. The calculations are performed by an
external valuer as at 30 June and 31 December of the relevant
year by using pre-tax cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
Thereafter, the cash flows are extrapolated using the terminal
growth rates not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of
the country in which the CGU operates.

Impairment test for goodwill arising from the
operation in Italy

The Group's operation in Italy is composed of Pax Italia S.r.I. (“Pax
Italia”), which is principally engaged in the sales of E-payment
Terminals products, and CSC ltalia S.r.l. ("CSC Italia”), which
is principally engaged in the provision of maintenance and
installation services. Goodwill of HK$28,783,000 was recognised
in relation to the acquisition of Pax Italia in 2015 and CSC Italia
in 2017. The goodwill is attributable to a number of factors,
amongst others, to the synergies expected to arise from the
Group’s operation in ltaly after their acquisition. Since the first
half of 2020, the maintenance and installation services business
has been significantly challenged. Price reduction, shrinking
margin of service, delay and suspension of sales contracts caused
a significant drop in profit in the first half of 2020. Further, the
anticipated synergies arising from the two businesses in Italy
were not fully crystallised as of 30 June 2020 in spite of different
measures implemented to expedite the integration.

16

\|EEE ®

Bi§4,497,0008 0 (ZE— N &F .
4,548,00087T) B BITHE BNk

HEEENEEAMREEEBMMER -

fﬁ%éi%ﬁh?ﬁ EEE BRI B AR
HEETEENEAERREER
RTECERFE+_A=+—H ' A&EN

& 415,743,000 752K B I B B AR89
2P (CE—HF . 528,833,000 TT)

ReELEBMUNPWEIRERENEREE
SAEEE st ERBEEEBFHIEND
FHMBIRE R EMRBRAIEE
MERAREEFEFEN A AB=TAk+=
A=+—REGHE LR HEEHRER
BFfRANRREREIEBBREESL
BUKEMERRNERRFHRER

MEAFNEBFREENEEEITR
=R

REBEEAFBNEKBPax Italia S.r.l.
(TPax ltalia)) (FERBHEBFHTK
IR B o) & CSC Italia S.r.l. (T'CSC Italial)
(FERMBEENZERE) FrEm A
##928,783,000 8 TtHBEERKENRZ

FB—FFIWHEPax Italag RN _E—tF
UNBECSC ItaliaMER - EEE A RER

HERFZ HTERBWBRERXRAN
EENRBAEENHEME- 5_7_
TELHFF HEENLZEBRBTEBR
%ﬂ(ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬁo{%%"ﬁ?&’HE?%%'J?FQ%"F
o HESRNEENPLEER —F—
TELFFANHERBTE UL BEK
WTREREMUMREFESG  B&LL
TECZERNAZTH MEEEKXRA
WEFPEENRBHEVNEERTE
BiRo
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill arising from the
operation in Italy (continued)

In view of the uncertainties surrounding the future profitability
of this operation, the Group revised the cash flow forecast of
this CGU for the purpose of goodwill impairment assessment as
at 30 June 2020. The management has assessed the recoverable
amount of the operation in Italy as at 30 June 2020 based on
the value in use. The revised cash flow forecast was discounted
using the pre-tax discount rate of 20.9% to determine the value
in use. The other key assumptions include compound annual
growth rate of 8.1% and terminal growth rate of 2.0%. As at
30 June 2020, the recoverable amount of HK$22,945,000 was
lower than the carrying amount of this CGU and this shortfall led
to an impairment of goodwill of approximately HK$14,699,000
during the first half of 2020 (Note 7). The impairment of goodwill
has been included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group revised its cash flow forecast
of the operation in Italy for the purpose of goodwill impairment
assessment. The key assumptions are pre-tax discount rate of
20.6% (2019: 19.6%), compound annual growth rate of 3.1%
(2019: 5.4%) and terminal growth rate of 2.0% (2019: same).
The recoverable amount of this CGU is calculated based on the
value in use and exceeded its carrying value as at 31 December
2020. An increase in pre-tax discount rate by 2.9% (2019: 0.7%)
would remove the remaining headroom for the operation in Italy.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT

17 BAFESABHmZEMEERE
LFESARMEZEHBZZ E/ME

FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE E
INCOME
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss () EATESABEEZEMEE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's financial assets at RIZEZEF+TA=+—H &&
FVPL represent investments in an unlisted investment fund ENRATEFABHRZEMEE
and an unlisted equity investment (2019: unlisted investment ERAEIIFLIMBREESRIFL
fund) outside Hong Kong with following details: MRAKE (CTE—h&F LR
BE®) 2KRBWT
HK$'000
FHET
Balance at 1 January 2020 NRIZEZEF—RB—HZH&ER 104,707
Addition (note) ANE (M) 22,495
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised RIBRARENEGRRFE R
in profit or loss (5,241)
Exchange realignment bE R A EE 8,159
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EE+-/A=+—B24H 130,120
Balance at 1 January 2019 RIE—hE—A—BZ&eH 94,058
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised RERARBHNEGL FEW S
in profit or loss 12,774
Exchange realignment BE 2 FE 2 (2,125)
Balance at 31 December 2019 A ZE—NE+ZR=+—B2Z4&H 104,707

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at FVPL is
denominated in RMB.

BATEF ARG ZEMEENR
HEXARBE
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

153

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Note:

On 4 December 2019, Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co.
Ltd (“Wonder Pax"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and two other independent third party investors
entered into an investment agreement (“Investment Agreement”)
with Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), Mega Hunt
Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited (“Megahunt”), Mega Hunt
Microelectronics Limited and certain management team members of
Hi Sun and its subsidiaries pursuant to which, among other things,
Wonder Pax has conditionally agreed to subscribe for approximately
3.64% of the enlarged registered capital of Megahunt with an
exit option at a consideration of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately of HK$21,985,000) (the “Investment”). The exit
option is exercisable by Wonder Pax under certain circumstances
on or before 31 December 2025. Wonder Pax shall have the right
to request the parent company of Megahunt to repurchase all or
some of the then registered capital at an original investment cost
plus 8% interest per annum. The Investment was completed on
30 March 2020. The Investment was a related party transaction
under applicable accounting standards and a connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with all applicable requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the transaction.
For details of the Investment Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 4 December 2019.
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(a)
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PE
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 BAFESIABZZEMEERIZ
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT AFEFAHMEZEREZ EME
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE = @

INCOME (continued)
(b) Financial asset at fair value through other (b) EBEATFESFAHMZEKEZE
comprehensive income MEE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's financial N_E2_EFER_T—NF+A
asset at FVOCI represents an investment in an unlisted equity =+—HB > KNEERATFESAEM
investment outside Hong Kong which is not held for trading, TEHRRZEMEERSBIEIINT
and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial JFFFE & B A& E 1 o [ #th 28
recognition to recognise in this category. This is a strategic BRZENPLERANIE L TR
investment and the Group considers this classification more KREZHRE -HA—IERRMEKRER
relevant. KEEDREEDBERMT)
HK$'000
FHT
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIBEZEF—H—HZ&ER 10,433
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised T E At 2 U R R R SR RY
in other comprehensive income BHATEEE (7,966)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIZBEZEF+_A=+—HZ4&ER 2,467
Balance at 1 January 2019 \_g NE—B—BZ#&R 11,870
Addition NE 803
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised HAE@EEH& 5 A SR Y
in other comprehensive income BHRFERE (2,240)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RIEBE—hE+ZA=+—HZ#&ER 10,433
The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is BATESFAEMEE NG 2/
denominated in EUR. BENKREEURITEHE
On disposal of this equity investment, any related balance THEILRERER  EREANZEA
within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings. TEFAEMEZENREZEMEE

REBREBELOEMDELRERA -
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18 SUBSIDIARIES 18 HBAH

ACBCFER-F-AFTA=+—

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2020 and 2019:

Place of incorporation and

Principal activities and

B T2NBARRENT

Particulars of issued and

Name pe of legal entity place of operation aid u reglstered capital Interest held
L i L -
k2 EE R TRERREEMY Eﬂﬂﬁzk‘ﬂ* FiistE
2020 2019
ZEZ%FE  EZANE
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products HK$113,125,000 100% 100%
BENEE % company and prowswon of related services 113,125,000 7¢
Bl in Hon
L L
REERRS
Pax Computer Technology The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of HK$380,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (*) company* E-payment Terminals products and 380,000,000 7T
BEHE# R (R e provision of related services m the PRC
BRAE TRERERHEETIMRBERK
REERRS
Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Development of software and hardware of HK$20,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. (* company* E-payment Terminals products and 20,000,000 7%
%Lﬁ/&ﬂ& (537 FE provision of related services in PRC
BRA TEHREREE T AR IGERNRME K
Bl RO IEERE
Pax Technology, Inc. The US, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products US$1,000 100% 100%
company in the U 1,000%7¢
%8 A RAT e
Pax Italia S.rl. Ita\ limited ||ab||\ty company Development and customising software EUR100,000 70% 70%
KA BIRAE systems and sales of E- paymem 100,000887T
Terminals products in Ital
ERANBIRBALBA R
HEsraianEg
CSC Italia S.r.l. Ita\ limited ||ab||\ty company Provision of software systems and EUR100,000 60% 60%
KA BR E-payment Terminals maintenance and 100,000887T
installation services in \taly
TEAFIRERAAGR
BF AR mNEERZERS
Kwang Woo Information & Korea, limited liability company Development, manufacturing and sales of Korean Won ("WON") 4,238,000,000 87% 87%
Communication Co., Ltd. &F) BRAT Epayment Terminals products 4,238,000,00082 8
("Kwang Woo")
T‘E&@EH%* LERBEBTAM
RImE R
Pax Pos Solutions India India, I|m|ted Ilabmty company Sales of E+ pa ment Terminals groduds inindia  Indian Rupee (“INR") 32,500,000 100% 100%
Private Ltd. 0E BRAT EHEHEE TR EER 32,500,000 E & th
Pax Japan Kabushiki Kaisha Japan, hmlted hab|l|ty company Sales of E- pa ment Terminals groducts in Japan  Japanese Yen ("JPY") 50,000,000 100% 100%
Pax Japantk i &4t AABRAR HRAHEET S HREER 50,000,0008 7%
Shan?hai New Kashuo The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB30,000,000 51% 51%
Information Technology company’ - 30,000,000 A B
Company Limited (* )(note) EP%FEQE
LESRHAEERNARAT
(WzD)
Suzhou leasy Information The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB7,500,000 -% 60%
Techn_olo%y Co., Ltd (*) compan HEEE 7,500,000\ R
BRI FE
BEBRA
* The English names of Pax Computer Shenzhen, Wonder Pax, * HREEERERI BEBE L8

MERESRMABRAE (TEBRRI)
KERMAITHEBRRBRATE (TEM
MTH)) LEEXNEETE HER
NEBEHAEREEER IR TN

Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Limited (“Shanghai
Kashuo”) and Suzhou leasy Information Technology Co., Ltd.
("Suzhou leasy”) represent the best effort by the management of
the Group in translating their Chinese names as they do not have

official English names. THEN R AR o

# Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises. # HEfASEEE R

. Registered as limited liability company (domestic and foreign joint " HMABREETLE (BRIEEDR
venture). ¥) o
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18

19

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The non-controlling interests in respect of Pax Italia S.r.l., Shanghai
Kashuo, Suzhou leasy, CSC Italia S.r.l. and Kwang Woo are not
material.

Notes:

(i) In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People's Republic of China. A qualified PRC law firm
has been appointed to follow up with the voluntary winding-up of
Shanghai Kashuo in accordance with the laws of the PRC. As at 31
December 2020, the liquidation process was still underway.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group transferred its
equity interest in Suzhou lesay to the minority shareholder. The gain
on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$3,126,000, including exchange
reserve of HK$756,000 reclassified to profit or loss, was recognised
in “other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income statement
(Note 5).

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s investments accounted for
using the equity method represent the investments in Shanghai
Coshine Software Company Ltd. (“Shanghai Coshine”), CPayond
GmbH (formerly known as C2P Convenient to Payments GmbH)
("CPayond”) and Niche Global Fintech Corporation Limited
("Niche Global”) (2019: same). They have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same
as the proportion of voting rights held.

Particular of

18

19

MEAT @

A#Pax Italia S.r.l.~ E/8-F:R &MENTT
5~ CSC ltalia S.r.l.&Kwang WooRYJE#Ep%
BRI AE K

M SE

(i) MRIE—NFELtB LEBE—FEEAEE
BEENEARBERE(PEAREME DL
EWELVFHTRERT BX LB
RN EFERF - —HMaEKTH
BMEBAEEZERBEARN EZE
REFFSFRVBBESE - RZE2ZE
FE+_B=+—H EERBRRFIERET
EPO

(i BEZZZZF+ZB=+—HILE
1* AEBREHEEBMNNTS NG ES
BLOBRR-RERBRATHKRE
3,126,0002%7E) BIE SN 756,000
BTEHDEEED EHEARERN
THAh (B518) /Wia 388 PRED (st

5)°

REDEARNKRE

RW_EZZF+A=+—H &xEBRU
BRAANRNREAH LERAHRNGE
R AE (I EER84)) ~ CPayond GmbH (R
£ #2C2P Convenient to Payments GmbH)
(T'CPayond ) KNiche Global Fintech
Corporation Limited (I'Niche Globall) (=
Z—AFE . BL Z2ERE MAINKAE
HEZBERMAENR HEBEBERFR AR
VHEAMNERtUEREFEEEME Fr
BB EL B B P A 9% Z BT EL B4R
EE

Place of incorporation and registered Nature of Effective Measurement
Name type of legal entity capital  relationship  Interest held method
B8 SR L 3t 2 e i T B R AMERFE MAME BRASER FERE
Shanghai Coshine The PRC, limited liability company RMB13,326,190 Associated 20%  Equity method

company
LiER%E E BRAF 13,326,190 AR BERF 20% Remk
CPayond Germany, limited liability company EUR25,000  Joint venture 50%  Equity method
CPayond EE BRAT 25,000B1 7T BEAR 50% %
Niche Global Hong Kong, limited liability company EUR3,000,000  Joint venture 50%  Equity method
Niche Global &8 BRAF 3,000,000B% 7T BERF 50% Bk
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157

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 HEFEARNKZE @
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2020 2019
ZEITE “ZT—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount of individually immaterial BRAEXREE AT NREE
associated company 15,529 15,949
Carrying amount of individually immaterial BRFAEREGERENREE
joint ventures (note) (fF5%) 6,173 -
21,702 15,949
The Group's share of results recognised in the FEBRGEEWRARER DG
consolidated income statement: FBEEEB B
— individually immaterial associated company —(ER A EKREE LT (1,423) (1,688)
— individually immaterial joint ventures —BRRERSE AT (4,623) (110)
(6,046) (1,798)

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to provide
funding relating to the Group’s interests in Shanghai Coshine,
CPayond and Niche Global. The Group’s interests in Shanghai
Coshine, CPayond and Niche Global are not material.

Shanghai Coshine, CPayond and Niche Global are private
companies and there is no quoted market price available for their
shares.

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's share of loss of CPayond exceeded
its interest in the equity of CPayond. The accumulated unrecognised
share of loss of the interest in CPayond was HK$1,405,000 (2019:
HK$3,222,000).
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WEAMAEEN L/BML - CPayond&
Niche Globalz # i 2 ABBEMAKEIR
HEZ - REEMN LB CPayond &
Niche Globalfy#EzR I RE A o

L8R5 ~ CPayond&Niche GlobalZfA A
NED ERMH I EARMIZRE.

ff 5%

WZZ2ZZ2F+ZBE=+—HB Zx&EERD
fECPayondZEﬂﬁfiﬂﬂﬁ”‘CPayonde%
ZHEHE o KRB Z D 1ECPayondEREIES
1,405,000 70 (ZE—H % :3,222,0008
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20

INVENTORIES =78

As at 31 December

®w+=-—B=4+—8
2020 2019
—EIRE “T—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 365,426 344,001
Work in progress THE 377,709 207,839
Finished goods BB @ 886,766 749,619
1,629,901 1,301,459
The cost of inventories amounted to HK$3,060,546,000 (2019: HE “EF+ R =F+—HLEFE>

HK$2,848,167,000) was included in cost of sales during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

During 2020, the emergence of the COVID-19 pandemic has
changed the E-payment terminal market. The growing health
consciousness brought by the pandemic has changed individuals’
payment habit and accelerated the transition from traditional
payment terminals to smart payment terminals which are
compatible to Android operating system that provides different
value-added application services. As such, the demand for the
older generation of traditional E-payment terminals has been
significantly affected. In addition, keen competition in China
market has further worsen the situation. During the year ended
31 December 2020, management had carried out an assessment
over the realisability of inventories based on their physical
condition, market demand and their historical usage. As a result,
provision for obsolete inventories of HK$153,182,000 (2019:
HK$38,986,000) and the direct written-off of obsolete inventories
of HK$13,634,000 (2019: Nil) have been made and included in
cost of sales respectively during the year ended 31 December
2020.

fifﬁzz!x3,060,546,ooo/%m(_% NE:
2,848,167,000%870) E B FEEHE M4

BB HRBRAETLENET
B S (AR I 745 RS 70 7 A A

ERN@HEE#RNE T AMANZAEE I
METRERZTRIHBEEERELS
T’E%% FRIEHAREEERBREHNE

BE AT 88 0m o UL » E— R EHR B F 21T
n\lﬁﬁE’]':F'szﬁ'EU & lbsh AT
SNSRI FEERE— T BL-HET
EIEFA+ AT HUEFE BERE
RIEFENERR R MHEERMELH
BB RETENEIREET T T &
It Rt iR R EF S 4515153,182,000%

7T (ZE— N4 : 38,986,000 70) K Hfi$H
FREET7 513,634,000 T (ZE—NF .
i) BB RTEHE AN o
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

159

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST iRz HithERE =
As at 31 December
®w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EITFE —T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Trade receivables (note (a)) FEURERFR (FT5E(a)) 1,519,053 1,592,985
Amounts due from related parties (note (a), & W el Bt 7wk B (B EE(a)
Note 34(b)) Mi5E34(b)) 13,455 5,454
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables & : FEURERFUBE R E (I5E()
(note (c)) (115,315) (93,574)
Trade receivables, net FEWBR =R — F 58 1,417,193 1,504,865
Bills receivables (note (b)) FEWERHE (MT5E(b)) 17,060 8,509
Trade and bills receivables PSR U R FEWR E 3% 1,434,253 1,513,374
Other financial assets at amortised cost R AT IR EthEREE 22,087 15,579
1,456,340 1,528,953

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in
the following currencies:

24 [ 4 I R e P ST R 0 9
B2 EA S B A BRI L T AU
Mt

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEE —_T—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Us$ E7T 836,187 983,213
RMB AR & 323,501 370,632
INR ELt 189,066 76,459
EUR BT 73,268 76,688
HK$ BT 7,482 11,399
Others H1th 26,836 10,562
1,456,340 1,528,953

The fair values of trade and bills receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost approximate their carrying values as at 31

December 2020 and 2019.
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A
JIRRZ HthEREE @

(a) FEURARTR

(a) Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180
days may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis
upon negotiation. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties based on invoice date is as follows:

FEERGTESREHSANEERR
0E180H I F - A KKEME A%
BRERAZFRHBBI180ANE
Ef-RZBE-ZTFER_FT-NF
+TZA=+—8 BURRR B
Bt MIRRE R B HIRE DU
T

As at 31 December

nm+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—BI%F “TNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Up to 90 days 90H R 1,198,429 1,059,623
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 94,348 254,277
181 to 365 days 181%365H 45,772 62,738
Over 365 days 365H 193,959 221,801
1,532,508 1,598,439

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$49,330,000 (2019:
HK$67,548,000), which represents 2% to 5% (2019: same)
of the relevant contract sum granted to certain number of
the customers in the PRC that has a retention period of
three to five years (2019: same). As at 31 December 2020,
retention money receivables aged over 365 days amounted
to HK$43,917,000 (2019: HK$59,437,000).

The Group's sales are made to several major customers and
there is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and
services to the top five customers constituted approximately
49.7% (2019: 54.6%) of the Group’'s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2020. They accounted for
approximately 30.7% (2019: 39.9%) of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2020.

BERKEKARAT

W_EB-EF+-_A=+—H EK
IR B FEW TE 0 £ 849,330,000
B (ZE—H%F :67,548,000%8
o) O EEFTEETEENERE
B4 A2% E5% (ZE—HF : [F
) o mBENBA=ZEZERAE (ZE
—hE BLE) R _ZF+_
B=+—H EBWEINI$3ERKEE
365H MIAEZEA43,917,0008 7T (=
— £ 1 59,437,000 7T) ©

AREBENHEENOBRETERL(F
HEEEEEFRAE BEZZTZ
EE+"_B=+—HLEEE HE
ABEFRHENE RRRHNRB G
EEBEWALNLI07% (ZE—HE
54.6%) MENR _E_ZEF+_
B=+—HWEWERMREGREEY
30.7% (ZE—H5F 139.9%) ©
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

161

(b) Bills receivables
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity

(c)

periods of within six months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as

follows:

21

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A
JIRRZ HthEREE @

MR R
AR IE B R A 7N E B U I
IRITRD R

(b)

FEERRRENZRBEROT :

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2020 2019
—EITE —Z—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Up to 90 days 90H LR 527 2,065
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 16,533 6,444
17,060 8,509

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment of trade

receivables is as follows:

() FEWERTRERE
RWERTUREREZFUT

As at 31 December

®W+ZA=+—H
2020 2019
BB “EZ2—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year REH 93,574 84,169
Provision for impairment losses for the year FEREEEEEE (:17)

(Note 7) 65,142 66,380
Reversal of provision (Note 7) BEEE (EE7) (59) (466)
Written off i £5 (46,664) (54,791)
Exchange realignment b 2 SE 2L 3,322 (1,718)
At end of the year REXR 115,315 93,574
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

(9]

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(continued)

The provision for impairment for the year was mainly
attributable to the long-aged trade receivables related to the
customers in USCA Region. The business of these customers
were affected due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which casted
a significant doubt on the recoverability of the receivables.
Based on the assessment of the expected credit losses (refer
to Note 3.1(b)(ii)), the Group has made a provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$65,142,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$66,380,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for
these receivables as at 31 December 2020 (2019: same).

22 OTHER ASSETS

21

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A
JIRRZ HthEREE @

(]

FEWARTRRE R R (@

ERMRERGETEREERER
ERNREIRBEVRD ZEPE
KRN EESRASEEMT AT
ERHAERKARNWATREIEEET
BANREME AEEEEPEERS
B% (BENE3D))  MBEZ
E_EZF+_HA=+—HLEFEE
HH & U BR 0 RL (B #3165, 142,00078 7T
(ZZE—N5 : 66,380,000 7T) ©

RBESHEEENRAEERRES
TR EREWSIENEREE R T
“EF+ZRA=tT—H KAEEILE
MZERKRRBIFBEMAIRG (Z
E—AEFL) e

22 HhEE

As at 31 December

W+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
I “EZ—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Current portion BNHAER 53
Prepayments FET=IE 14,003 2,175
Others HAh 33,704 15,214
47,707 17,389
Non-current portion JEBNHRER 9
Others Hh 4,966 4,368
4,966 4,368
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23 RESTRICTED CASH 23 ZRFIRE
As at 31 December
®w+-—HA=+—H
2020 2019
“BIFE “TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIIRITER 15,345 115,877

Restricted cash represents bank deposits of the Group which were
placed as guarantee deposits for bills payables and as securities for
sales of goods to customers (2019: same).

As at 31 December 2020, the effective interest rate on restricted

bank deposits was 6.00% (2019: 1.02%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash were denominated in the
following currencies:

SREFSIEAEIFEABETERR
R EENEETERNRTER (TS
—hE AL e

RZIZEZZFE+"A=+—H %RH
IRITERNBRFEXREF6.00% (ZF
—HE 11.02%)

RRFIREHOREERUTIEEHE

As at 31 December
w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEF —T—NE
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

INR Etb 13,694 12,167
RMB NG 1,651 103,710
15,345 115,877

24 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 24 FSHASRITIERR

As at 31 December 2020, the short-term bank deposits of
HK$3,082,000 (2019: HK$3,020,000) represented bank deposits
of the Group with original maturities over three months which are
denominated in INR. The effective interest rate on short-term bank
deposits was 7.33% (2019: 7.33%) per annum.
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25 REKRREEFEY

As at 31 December

®W+=ZBA=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEE —ZT—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREEHEEY 3,802,741 2,994,661
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities of ~ f2HBSEIT 2K
less than three months) (BEEIHELR=ER) - 235,344
3,802,741 3,230,005

As at 31 December 2020, funds of the Group amounting
to HK$2,531,066,000 and HK$42,374,000
HK$2,095,445,000 and HK$26,705,000) were deposited in bank
accounts opened with banks in the PRC and India, respectively,
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange

control.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were

denominated in the following currencies:

(2019:

RIZBEZZF+-RA=+—H ' x&E@D
B A $02,531,066,0003% 75 &~ 42,374,000
BT (TE—H5F 1 2,095,445,0008 7T K&
26,705,000/ 7T) EHRAEFE KN EIER
IRITRILBIRITIRE > MBMESHNIE
SEINEE o

ReRFEEBINETEDHUTIIE
ekt -

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIEF ZT—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
RMB AR# 2,529,613 2,095,391
us$ E7T 884,286 973,745
HK$ BT 223,603 34,418
EUR BUIT 111,167 72,968
INR ELb 25,602 23,687
Others HAth 28,470 29,796
3,802,741 3,230,005

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 were HK$3,802,519,000 (2019:

HK$3,229,853,000).

WS _ZF+_-_HA=+—H > Kx&EH
BEAEERMA3,802,519,0008 7T (&
— L4 3,229,853,00037T) ©
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 26 MRAKFERRIE
(a) Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company (@) FTAFRBBITREERZE
Ordinary
Number of shares of
ordinary HK$0.1
shares each
EREE
0.1 7T
EiEReE LiER
Thousand
shares HK$'000
Issued and fully paid EETRERE T FHET
At 1 January 2019 and RZE—hE—B—HXK
31 December 2019 “E-AFE+ZA=+—H 1,100,194 110,019
At 1 January 2020 NZEZEFE—F— 1,100,194 110,019
Shares repurchased and cancelled ﬁ’filﬂﬁyfﬁ@ﬁ%&uﬁé (M3 5%)
during the year (note) (20,283) (2,028)
Employee share option scheme: BEERERETE
— share options exercised — BT EE R 12,926 1,293
At 31 December 2020 N_Z2-ZF+"F=+—H 1,092,837 109,284
Note: s -

165

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased
a total of 20,283,000 ordinary shares (2019: Nil) on the Stock
Exchange at approximately HK$78,059,000 (2019: Nil), including the
aggregate purchase consideration of HK$77,745,000 and the related
expenses of HK$314,000. All repurchased shares have been cancelled
during the year. Details of the ordinary shares repurchased on the
Stock Exchange during the year are as follows:

REBEE_Z_ZTE+_A=+—H
IFEE > A ATLUAT78,059,0008 T
(ZE—hE: ﬁ)rﬁﬁﬂ/\ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁa,\
20,283,000 (Z=E—h&F &) &
B B EEENREL77,745,0008 T
REMEBEBRA314,0008 T 280
EROABENERTH FEREHAME
RS EREBENT

Highest Lowest

Number of purchase purchase

ordinary price per price per

shares ordinary ordinary

repurchased shares shares

=14 5k

BB el EE R EiEkkEy EiEikey

Month of repurchase E#EA 13 gE REWBEE REEERE
(Thousand

shares) (HKS) (HKS)

(T8 () ()

January 2020 22 HF—R 7,987 3.90 3.78

February 2020 —T-TF_A 4,614 418 3.68

April 2020 —2TERFNA 3,000 3.27 3.09

May 2020 “Z2TEFHA 882 3.19 3.10

June 2020 ZETEERA 800 3.68 3.61

July 2020 “ZTTHFLA 800 3.43 3.38

August 2020 —E2TZENR 600 5.09 4.95

September 2020 —T-THNA 800 4.80 4.64

October 2020 B BF+A 800 4.59 4.46
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company

()

Share option scheme

The Company operates two share option schemes
(the “Schemes”) approved by the shareholders on 1
December 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) and on 2 May
2019 (the “"2019 Scheme”), respectively, each of which
will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from that date unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purpose of the Schemes is to reward eligible
participants who have contributed or will contribute
to the Group and to encourage eligible participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The 2010 Scheme

On 1 December 2010, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the 2010 Scheme for the issuance
of in aggregate no more than 10% in nominal amount
of the aggregate of shares in issue on the listing date
of the Company, representing 100,000,000 shares
(subject to the terms of the 2010 Scheme and the
relevant provisions under the Listing Rules).

The 2010 Scheme has expired on 30 November 2020
and there was no outstanding options under the 2010
Scheme. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the 2010 Scheme.

The 2019 Scheme

On 2 May 2019, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the 2019 Scheme for the issuance
of in aggregate no more than 7.5% in nominal
amount of the total number of shares in issue on the
date of adoption of the 2019 Scheme, representing
82,514,550 shares (subject to the terms of the 2019
Scheme and the relevant provisions under the Listing
Rules).

26

B A B FERGHE )
(b) ZsATIEEBAGHE

@)

BERKEKARAT

fBlRiEstE

AP EFEMIERRKRRD BT
—Z2—ZF+-A—RH(0Z=
—ZEFHE) RZF-NEFR
BZR(ZZE—-hEst81) #t
ERERESE (TZEt8)) »
PRIFEFTEESHEERT > BRIM
B EIR B BZARES +F
HRRFAEMRAN T -

ZEEIEEMER AR HAE
EEHERNET  TxE2
HBED/ERBRHERRAER
Mo BHRARRTRER
MHEE-

—E-ZF5E
N_E-—FF+"_F—H K
NEEEGHE_ZS—TF5t
BIUETERABBARATH
T HBEETRMOEEE
#J10% > BI100,000,0000% B 15
(B BB _Z—ZEE8W
B REST EHRANERER
TE) °

RZZ2—=H+—HB=+H"
“E-ZFFEELKE M B
AR EmERITENE
- HEE_SZ _ZTE+_AH
—t+—HIEFE BIEITHEE
KEE_—_ZT-—ZSFHEHEE
H T s ko

—E-NEF5E
RN_E—NERB_H &Q
BESgHE_ZT—NFtE
UBTARABDNR _E—hHEt
BRGNP E R TRDEHK
A iEB387.5% > B182,514,550
R (BEERBR-ZZ—NEF
SHEIBE TR BT R
BREEE) -

—E_DEER
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R E M BRI

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26

167

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

B A B FERGHE )
(b) ZSATIEEBIGKE @

(i) Share option movements under 2019 Scheme (i) Z—ZF—NF:tE FRIZE)
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
RIEZEE RZIEZEE
—A—H +-B=+—-H
4 et =k TEE  FRBRESRE FREH FRTHE FERRH  FiEEREZE
(HKS)
(#70)
Directors
EZ
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 357 23,000,000 . - - 23,000,000
(48z1) “E-AE+RAZR*
Employees
g8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 59,510,000 - (12,926,000) - 46,584,000
(4z1) “E-AETAZR*
Total 82,510,000 - (12,926,000) - 69,584,000
By
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RZB-RE RZB-LE
—A—H +-B=+—-H
4 et =k TEE  FRBREHRE FREH FRTHE FEREH  FiEEREYE
(HKS)
(&7)
Directors
EZ
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.570 - 23,000,000 = - 23,000,000
(48351) “2-AE+AZR*
Employees
g8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.570 - 59,510,000 - - 59,510,000
(431) “E-AETAZR*
Total - 82,510,000 - - 82,510,000
By
* The share options will be vested to the grantees, * EREREABEA BR

among which 30% of the share options would be
vested on the date of grant, a further 30% of the
share options be vested on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and the remaining 40% of the share
options will be vested on the second anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise period of these share
options shall be 5 years from the date of grant, subject
to the aforesaid vesting period.
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26 PRAKEERGE @

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(iiij) Share option movements

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average

exercise prices are as follows:

(b) FREERE @
(iii)  FEAR BT B

HARTENBRERE RER
BT HTREERESHN
o

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
k- ol “T-NEF

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

SHREN SHEREN
BTEH FERR BTEH R
TfEfE (F1) 171EfE (F15)
At 1 January ®n—A—H 3.570 82,510 4.860 8,534
Granted ERE - - 3.570 82,510
Exercised BiT#E 3.570 (12,926) - -
Lapsed [EE - - 4.860 (8,534)
At 31 December B+ZA=+—H 3.570 69,584 3.570 82,510

On 28 May 2014, 22,254,000 share options under the
2010 Scheme were granted to certain employees and
consultants at an exercise price of HK$4.86 per share.
All the remaining 8,534,000 options were lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

On 2 October 2019, 82,510,000 share options under
the 2019 Scheme were granted to certain directors
and employees at an exercise price of HK$3.57 per
share. These options shall expire on 1 October 2024.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share
option was granted, cancelled or lapsed, and a total
of 12,926,000 share options (which were part of the
share options granted to the employees on 2 October

2019) were exercised.

RZE—-—MWMERB_+N\H>
N_E—TEREREFEIET
22,254,0001p BEREUITEE
FRASETRFETEER
EE -BHE_ZE—N&E+TA
=+—HIEFE > 8,534,00017
W ARITERBIREE L -

RZE—AhE+BEZH KT
E—HEFE:HEITET82,510,000
PEERENITHEESRICTE
TERYETEEREE &S
ERER_SZ_WE+/8—
HEHB BE_E_ZTF+_
B=+—HBLEEE ZF—Ah
F 51 EI T8 T I E AT A BE R R
EERE - FEHEALN BaH
12,926,0001p &G 7 (LA Z
Z-HFE+RE_BETFEEN
BN —ID) BE’ITH-
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R E M BRI

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(iiij) Share option movements (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share
based payment expense of HK$38,805,000 (2019:
HK$38,686,000) (Note 10) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement and was credited in
equity. The weighted average share price immediately
before the share options exercise dates was HK$5.98
per share (2019: Nil). As at 31 December 2020, out of
69,584,000 (2019: 82,510,000) outstanding options,
36,580,000 (2019: 24,753,000) options were exercisable.

27 RESERVES

169

26 BRASKBERGHE @
(b) Z~ATIEERGHE @

27 (#E

(iii)

FEIRIERIEE) (45
RBEE_ZE_ZTE+_H
St+—HEFE REAK
ZRBERONICTERS
38,805,000 70 (ZE— % !
38,686,000 7t) (MIzE10) K
FEEBBEE st AR - B4%E
B&% #E47 1E B HA AT AY h0 7 T 15 AR
BAER5.988T (CE—N
FE.\ REEF+_"H
=+—H>69,584,0001 (Z=
— L4 : 82,510,00019) ik
TEBRED > oI iT AR
#336,580,00017 (ZE— N :
24,753,0001%) °

Financial asset
at fair value
Share  Employment  through other

Share Capital option benefit ~ comprehensive Other Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve  income reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
BATE
AL
w0 2ENEZ
RAER B BRAEGERE B SREERRE Rt SEGRE RAEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TEn TEn TEn TEn FEn FEn FEn FiEn
(note () (note (i)
(H3) (3k()
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZF-EETCACH-ALER
Balance at 1 January 2020 N FE-F-H2EH 1,274,530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 134 (149,028) 3,843,670 4,655,926
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profitfor the year ERiER| - - - - - - - 900,123 900,123
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Rth2ERE/ (58
Exchange differences arising on translation of the financial ~ REEINKBARFREREENEREE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 187,746 - 187,146
Change i value of finandial asset at FVOCI BOTEFARMZENEN
SHEEEE - - - - (7,966) - - - (7,966)
Release of exchange reserves upon disposal of a subsidiary HENBARBRHZ MNERR - - - - - - (756) - (756)
Remeasurement of post-employment EEGRAIERER
benefit obligation - - - 51 - - - - 51
Total comprehensive incomefloss) for the year EERENG/ (5B 88 - - - 51 (7,966) - 186,990 900,123 1,079,198
Transactions with owners RREANZR
Repurchase of the Company's shares EERARNRR (76,031) - - - - - - - (76,031)
Dividends declared to the shareholders of the Company BERRSSATRFZRE - - - - - - - (250,093) (250,093)
Share option scheme B
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BiRERBHEE (H:t10) - - 38,805 - - - - - 38,805
- share options exercised -BifEkkE 44853 - - - - - - - 44,853
Total transactions with owners HEEANTRLE (31,178) - 38,805 - - - - (250,093) (242,466)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIE-EE+-AZ+-B2&R 1,243,352 (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 134 37,962 4,484,700 5,492,658
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27 RESERVES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

27 f#fE @

Financial asset

at fair value
Share  Employment  through other
Share Capital option benefit  comprehensive Other Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve fesenve income feserve Teserves feserve eamings Total
#ATE
HALf
' RENEZ
RitaE Al EREEE Bl cREEGE A SERE RAEA a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TEn FER TER FER TEn TEn TER
(note (1) (note (i)
(#30) (3
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZT-NETZAZ+-BLEE
Balance at 1 January 2019 RIF-hE-F-B2E# 1,274,530 (414,978) 81,173 (19) (7.822) 134 (101,004) 3298813 4,132,034
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - - 623873 623,873
Other comprehensive loss Rth2EHE
Exchange differences arising on translation of the financial ~~ REEINBARHREREENEREE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 48,024) - (48,024)
Change in value of financial asset at FVOC BOTEFAZMRENEN
SREECEENE - - - - (2.240) - - - (2,240)
Remeasurement of post-employment ERERNBRES
benefit obligation - - - (387) - - - - (387)
Total comprehensive (loss)income for the year EE2E (BB /hElE - - - (387) (2,240) - 48,024) 623873 573,02
Transactions with owners HREANZR
Dividends declared to the shareholders of the Company BERIREAATRELRE - - - - - - - (88,016) (88,016)
Share option scheme BhEE
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BRERBHERE () - - 38,686 - - - - - 38,686
Total transactions with owners HEEANRRLE - - 38,686 - - - - (88,016) 49,330)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RIE-AE+ZAZ+-B2&R 1274530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 134 (149,08) 3834670 4,655,926
Notes: N
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXG#E
Capital reserve represents the difference between (i) the aggregate BEAREBETIMENER (IRZ2
of the consideration for the acquisitions upon the reorganisation —ZF B+ HAHEHTHMEARUER
completed on 15 February 2010; and (ii) the aggregate of the share BHERE RNV LB BEEEBNHBA
capital and share premium of the directly owned subsidiaries of the BRI A D m B4R ER o
Company.
(i)  Statutory reserves (i) EERE

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is required to allocate
10% of the company’s net profit to the statutory reserves fund
until such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase its registered
capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of its registered capital. As at 31 December 2020, retained earnings
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to HK$213,905,000
(2019: HK$193,996,000).

KRB R PEBIMERB ARG RQE M
FE0%NEEELZERBT EEZRH

BEEEHAEMEARNS0%

o 4%

ERE

BiLER ATERESTBANIEHE R
ERERENEFEMES HZHEESR
BAEHFNEFMER25%HIKF o ;2
TECEE+ A=+ —H RERA
BIE R E# B S213,905,0008 T (ZF
— L% 1 193,996,000 %) ©
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28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 [FE(TERFR - FE(T =5 - HthFE{JER™R

AND ACCRUALS R FEEtRRIA
As at 31 December
®W+ZB=+—H
2020 2019
2B “EZ2—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Trade and bills payables FE <1 BR TR R FE A BB 48
Trade payables FE{TRR R 1,353,168 1,114,648
Amount due to a related party (Note 34(b)) FERT— BB 5 =08 (Y 5E34(b)) 18,099 19,799
Trade payables (note (a)) FETBRFY (FY5E(a)) 1,371,267 1,134,447
Bills payables (note (b)) FETZE3R (MT5E(b)) - 248,040
1,371,267 1,382,487
Other payables and accruals H & R TR e FE 5T 7R 1E
Other accrued expenses and payables HMES R RIRER 256,131 188,980
Dividend payable RS A% B 109,284 -
Receipt in advance from customers (note (c)) EWERHIE (k) 96,933 81,174
Other tax payables HMEMIRR 14,049 28,903
Payable for construction in prgoress FENTEIZTHE 9,062 -
485,459 299,057
(a) Trade payables (a) PFE(TERRR

The ageing analysis of trade payables (including amount due FEERMIZE ZE R RN RE DT (B
to a related party of trading in nature) based on invoice date HERE — R 5 325 HHRIE) 1
is as follows: T

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
ZEIEF ZZT—NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Up to 90 days 90 UA 1,174,424 964,713
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 181,025 150,861
181 to 365 days 181HZE365H 59 88
Over 365 days 365H L £ 15,759 18,785
1,371,267 1,134,447

The average credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers

ranges from 0 to 180 days.
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28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 28 FEfTERTR R FR45 - HtETERTR
AND ACCRUALS (continued) R &St FRIA 1)
(b) Bills payables (b) FEHERE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: ZAERIEIRIT AR EE
As at 31 December
W+ZHA=+—H
2020 2019
—EEg “T—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Due within 90 days 90K EIHA - 248,040
() Receipt in advance from customers () FEWERMIE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December BE_Z-ZEF+"A=+—HI1k
2020 that was included in the contract liability balance at FE REVHFAGHNEELEGRZ
the beginning of the year amounted to HK$46,434,000 BRI 546,434,000 7T (ZF
(2019: HK$29,259,000). The Group expects to deliver the — L€ 1 29,259,000 7T) - AN EEETE
goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of H—FxURRERHERUNETHEE
these contract liabilities within one year or less. EHNBEZRBNEE-
29 fa&

29 BORROWINGS

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
BB “EZ2—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current FEBNHA
Loan from the non-controlling interest of REBRENBABIEERER
a subsidiary in Korea B™% - 2,254

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no borrowings.

The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing as at 31 December
2019 were denominated in WON and approximated its fair values.
The loan from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary in Korea
was unsecured, repayable by 31 December 2022 and bore average
fixed interests of 4.50% annually. This interest-bearing borrowing
was carried at amortised cost. The borrowing was repaid during

the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no banking facilities were

available to the Group.

A B CEF+_A=+—H AEBRT
e ==
MEE

RIE—NE+_B=+—H > £EEE
ERNREEMUBREEREAFERE
REBENBARIEERER 2 ERER
TE T CEFE+_B=1+—HEIEE
HERA®BKR BEFTHEENES
450% st EEEREHM AR -HEZ
E-EF+_A=Z+—HEE BEBE
%o

RCECRERCTF-NFTAET—
B AL A B A HIRITEE
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 RIEFRTSIA

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FIEFMEREEREBBENREAZEEN
the year is as follows: T

Deferred income tax assets IRIEFRISMEE

2020 2019
ZEIZE “2-hE
Lease Lease
Provisions liabilities Others Total Provisions liabilities Others Total

B HEAR = it B BEAR Eft fit
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TEL TR TR TR

At 1 January ®—B—H 17,143 17,888 18,530 53,561 21,978 6,213 9,726 37917
Credited to/(charged to) the consolidated income (rz8) /3t

statement SalEx 12,187 (1,431) 5,457 16,213 (4,446) 11,789 9,155 16,498
Exchange realignment EREE 1,789 519 1,586 3,894 (389) (114) (351) (854)
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—8H 31,119 16,976 25,573 73,668 17,143 17,888 18,530 53,561
Set-off deferred income tax liabilities HHEETAERERE - (16,102) - (16,102) - (17,590) - (17,590)
Deferred income tax assets, RTZA=+—A1K

net at 31 December BEFMEHEETE 31,119 874 25,573 57,566 17,143 298 18,530 35,971
Deferred income tax liabilities IEEFRSRAR

2020 2019
bt 33 “Z-E
Revaluation Revaluation
Right-of-use  of intangible Right-of-use of intangible
asset asset Others Total asset asset Total
BEFRE EBREEER Hith B BEFRR EVBEEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TEL TEL TERL

At 1 January ®-B—8H (17,590) (7,240) - (24,830) (6,213) (8,641) (14,854)
Credited tof(charged to) the (nKa) /HARE

consolidated income statement et 1,988 1,009 (1,194) 1,803 (11,490) 1,102 (10,388)
Exchange realignment EREE (500) (465) (63) (1,028) 113 299 412
At 31 December R+ZB=1+—-H (16,102) (6,696) (1,257) (24,055) (17,590) (7,240) (24,830)
Set-off deferred income tax assets HHRLHMEHREE 16,102 - - 16,102 17,590 - 17,590
Deferred income tax liabilities, R+ZA=1+—HH

net at 31 December EEFMERER

FE - (6,696) (1,257) (7,953) - (7,240) (7,240)
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2020, the Group has unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$448,438,000 (2019: HK$289,629,000 ). Tax losses amounting
to HK$442,800,000 (2019: HK$289,629,000) will expire from
2023 to 2040 (2019: 2023 to 2039). The remaining tax losses
have no expiry date. The potential deferred income tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised will
be calculated based on the effective income tax rates according to
prevailing tax laws and regulations in which the Group operates.

Cai Shui 2008 Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, took effect
on 22 February 2008. Under the circular, dividends declared by
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) to foreign investors out of
their cumulative retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall
be exempt from withholding income tax. For dividends declared
out of profit earned after 1 January 2008, withholding income
tax will be levied on the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10%
unless the foreign investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax
treaty with the PRC that provides for a different withholding tax
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities
have not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$135,637,000 (2019:
HK$111,494,000), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31 GRAaRERERMEE
STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (@) PRERAIEMAIGMBEKERSRE
generated from operations R AR
Year ended 31 December
BE+_A=+—HLEE
2020 2019
2% Z—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Profit before income tax BRPT1SA AR A 1,052,841 754,673
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income FEUA (38,861) (27,782)
Finance costs A5 E A 8,285 5,155
Share-based payment expenses = EA 38,805 38,686
Depreciation of property, M BERREITE
plant and equipment 16,287 14,611
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFREINE 39,628 33,071
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 4,497 4,548
Impairment of goodwill EERE 14,699 18,392
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEYE BB KREEN
plant and equipment, net JEB‘?E/ (W zm) » 358 127 (2,738)
Share of results of investments BREmDEARNKEESR
accounted for using the equity method 6,046 1,798
Employee benefit obligations EBERANEH - REEFTE
— defined benefit plans 1,397 478
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREEREFEE 65,083 65,914
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BATEFABRZEHEEZ
at FVPL NEEEBE WE 5,241 (12,774)
Provision for obsolete inventories [REFEERE 153,182 38,986
Direct written-off of obsolete inventories EERMEMERE 13,634 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR ZWE (3,126) -
Operating profit before EEESEBFI KR
working capital changes: 1,377,765 933,018
Decrease in trade and bills receivables, FE WS AR TR R FE U ZE 4% ~
other financial assets BRI AR s/
at amortised cost and other assets BEKETEERD 5,930 324,840
Increase in inventories ZE N (402,104) (183,017)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SREIRE R, (Em) 101,120 (69,349)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills FE(TBR AN R FEAT 2245 ~ BB (T
payables, other payables and accruals BRI FE SRR IE GRib) /18 (71,220) 256,864
Cash generated from operations BEMBRE 1,011,491 1,262,356
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31
STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sales
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

RARENERME @

(b) HEME. B KRKRERSTRIEA

MEEREAERT HEWE W
R FEHPISMIEEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—B=t—RHILEE

2020 2019
ZEIERE ZZ—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAET
Net book amount REDFE 127 13,878
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, H::"E%% B 55 K2
plant and equipment, net BB (BB W P58 (127) 2,738
Proceeds from sales of property, ﬁ’i%% B R
plant and equipment BN PTERIE - 16,616
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 MEEHFRELXEENHER
activities
This section sets out the movement in liabilities arising from KEHITEIN S FEME TSR
financing activities for each of the years presented. EEXaENEE-
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEaE (E= =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FERT FET
As at 1 January 2020 R-E-Sf5—A—H 111,942 2,254 114,196
Additions on leases HERE 36,811 - 36,811
Disposal on leases AE&IE (782) - (782)
Cash flows Reng (29,899) (2,220) (32,119)
Foreign exchange adjustments fE iR 4,515 (34) 4,481
As at 31 December 2020 WZE-EF+-"H=+—H 122,587 - 122,587
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—h&—HB—H 54,758 8,244 63,002
Additions on leases HERE 82,629 - 82,629
Cash flows RERE (25,346) (5,636) (30,982)
Foreign exchange adjustments ERAE (99) (354) (453)
As at 31 December 2019 RIE-AF+ZR=+—H 111,942 2,254 114,196
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAER
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material RZEZEEFERZIZ—HAE+ZAH

contingent liabilities.

=t+—8- K%liﬁ%%ki%%i@o
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33 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet
date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

33 EBAEE

REBHIJHNEREIBEBHNERE
AW T -

As at 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EBF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment in the PRC I PRI 2 BB s 128,565 4,983

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and

34 FBAMARS

il —% AL AN EFABEEGEM
ATHEEMALFHEBREERR
REHEFBMERTZE IZALRIA

operating decisions.

(a) Transactions with related parties

Except for those disclosed below and elsewhere on the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
significant transactions with related parties during the year

ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same).

BZLEMA LIRS -

BIRAR S BIRR 5

BR TN XFTIREEE R R G MWK
HMsth 5o AEBRBE_T
EE+ A=+ —HEEERES
TEEFERARS (CTE—IEF [
B)e

(a)

Year ended 31 December

BE+_-_A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
ZEIEFE ZZT—NF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Transactions with subsidiaries of Hi Sun: HEBzWBATNRS .
— Sales of electronic payment products to —AEEZNEATHEHES
subsidiaries of Hi Sun (note (i) Y ES MTEEG)) 38,595 47,498
— Purchase of raw materials from a —BEEBzNBRBEERME
subsidiary of Hi Sun (note (ii)) (B 5%Gi)) 76,607 52,138
— Rental expenses to a subsidiary of Hi Sun  —AISBEZHBATZ(ITHEE R
(note (iii)) (P = (i) 1,493 1,431
Transactions with a joint venture: HEERANKS !
- Commission to a joint venture (note (iv))  —BE&ZE AT Z([AHEE (FsEiv)) 1,218 830
— Service income from —BAaERBMNRFE WA
a joint venture (note (iv)) (M3 5E(iv)) 1,168 7,450
— Interest income from a loan to a joint —BEERBEERNFEWA
venture (note (v)) (FF5E(V)) 247 153
— Sales of electronic payment products to —MAEEREHEBTENER
a joint venture (note (iv)) (FF 5 (iv)) 176 -
* The Company is an associated company of Hi Sun whose * rpElzaBHNBER T ER

shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of electronic payment products to subsidiaries of Hi
Sun were transacted pursuant to the terms and conditions
set out in the framework agreement entered into by the
Company and Hi Sun on 19 December 2012. The terms and
conditions of the framework agreement were renewed on 31
December 2015 and further renewed on 5 December 2018.
These transactions were continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Report of
the Directors in respect of these transactions.

Purchase of raw materials from a subsidiary of Hi Sun was
conducted pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the
framework agreement entered into by the Company and
Hi Sun on 30 December 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement were renewed on 30 December
2016 and further renewed on 30 December 2019. These
transactions were continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Report of
the Directors in respect of these transactions.

Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.
These transactions were de minimis continuing connected
transactions exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Sales of electronic payment products to, commission to and
service income from a joint venture were transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions mutually agreed between the
two parties. These transactions did not constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Interest income from a loan to a joint venture is charged at
an interest rate of EURO Interbank Offer Rate (“EURIBOR")
plus a margin of 5% per annum. These transactions did not
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

34 FAWEAR

5 @

() HRANRS @

P 5 -
(0

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BERKEKARAT

MEBENEARFHESEFX
NERBERATDESBER =%
——F+ZA+NBATINER
MEFEIER AR ETZS o
ERBERVIEREN T -1
F+ZR=+HEFT LERZF
—N\NF+ZBEHE-FE-
ZERXG A LETRUE T OAE
FIRENFBEMERS . AEH
BNEFERENTHERZ ) —
EiFF ALz S 58T L RAY
E+MASBERANRE

BBl —RHNEBARBERM
HEARBESHER T —=
F+ZRA=THITUNERTGZE
PR B ARR AR B AR 1R HE 1T - IE R 17 58
FTEFERER _FE—RE+Z
A=+HET IR _E—NF
+TZRA=+RHE-—F BT -ZF
XFmEDRAE T HAEFFR
ENFERERS . AEEEW
EFEgREDIAERS —HIFR
TRZEXZET LHRAEB
TOASEARE -

mE 05— BB QB AHE
TEAREEER K BETH
EHHBHE - ZEXBH/LED
RAUETHAZTETRMERER
BRAERS  HRRBTRERAE.
FEERKFAARENREE -

MEERBHEEFNEM:
SZNAERkBEEERBNRGRE
I AT AR 15 & 75 H B 17 E BY 1%
RRIEHET - ZEXRZULTE
B EMRHRAE +HAZIE TR
BRBRFEMERS

maERBERNR B W AZER
TIRTEEREXN LFEFNX
5%HF KRG B -ZEFEXR LT
B E AR A S AZIE T B
BRRFEMERS
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

34 FABARZ @
(b) ERRFEATSBVAEER

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2020 2019
—EIBFE “T—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Balances with subsidiaries of Hi Sun: Wk M E A BBIEER -
— Amounts due from subsidiaries of Hi Sun ~ —FEWSIE 2B A SIS
(note (i), Note 21) (BH5EG) ~ MF5EE21) 13,455 5,454
— Amount due to a subsidiary of Hi Sun —ENEEz—EREABNRIE
(note (i), Note 28) (PI5E() ~ M9 5E28) 18,099 19,799
Balances with a joint venture: HEERNRNER
- Loan to a joint venture (note (ii) —aEgnaam MEi)) 4,781 4,196
— Amount due from a joint venture —REBIRE&EABNMRIE
(note (iii) (B =) 3,131 6,597

Notes: P EE

(i) Asat 31 December 2020, the balances with subsidiaries of Hi iy MIEZZHF+ZA=+—8>
Sun are unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of ZEHSHGINBRANERA
60 days (2019: same). EIEF R E AN ACOREEH

—Z—AFHL) -

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the loan to a joint venture is (i MZE_ZF+-_B=+—H>
unsecured, with an interest-bearing at EURIBOR plus 5% per EEARERABEIRTE HER
annum and repayable by 7 March 2024 (2019: same). BRI IR 1T B ZE 4R OA) =0 £5% K

BR_ZE_ME=FtH3#HT
BE(CZ—AFE BHL)-

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the balance with a joint venture is (iiy WZEZZEHF+ZA=+—H>
unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of 120 days ZEHGERDNER A RIK
(2019: same). R BEHWE1208EE8 (=

Z—AFE AL -

Key management compensation (0 FEEEEME

(9
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emoluments as disclosed in Note 36.

179 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BE_Z_SER_ZT—HhE+_
B=+—HLEE TEEBEH
SHEHNHE3RE ERHS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 35 ZHARBEABEBREEEHEES
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company rAFEEAER
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=+—H
2020 2019
—EBEITE —Z—hHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
lbES FH&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REREATNKRE 645,752 619,007
Total non-current asset EREBEELE 645,752 619,007
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets Hit e s = 625 858
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS MY B A B FR I8 785,729 635,678
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 253,819 270,311
Total current assets REEEHE 1,040,173 906,847
Total assets BEHE 1,685,925 1,525,854
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners ERFHE AR LR
of the Company
Share capital %N 109,284 110,019
Reserves (G (a) 1,447,098 1,401,385
Total equity R ARRE 1,556,382 1,511,404
LIABILITIES =Fi=
Current liabilities mEBEE
Other payables and accruals HhFE (T BR 7R K FE 51 =R 1B 129,543 14,450
Total current liabilities and mENBREEKREEEEE
total liabilities 129,543 14,450
Total equity and liabilities EEkhaEisEzE 1,685,925 1,525,854
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35

181

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserves movement of the Company

35 XREEEEGERKIFEEH ®

(@) HREHEEE

Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
RIVEE ERERE RERF =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FHET FET
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZIEZF
—R—HZ &R 1,274,530 119,859 6,996 1,401,385
Profit for the year FERA - - 288,179 288,179
Transactions with owner BBEAZRS
Repurchase of the Company's shares  [E]FE A B BIBR 1R (76,031) - - (76,031)
Dividends declared to the shareholders BEERBEAATIREZRE
of the Company - - (250,093) (250,093)
Share option scheme BRI
— value of services provided (Note 10)  —ERMHARFEHIEE (HI5E10) - 38,805 - 38,805
— share optinos exercised —BITEERE 44,853 - - 44,853
Balance at 31 December 2020 NRZEZEE
+ZA=+—Bz&H% 1,243,352 158,664 45,082 1,447,098
Balance at 1 January 2019 RIZ—hEF
—B—RzZ &R 1,274,530 81,173 40,148 1,395,851
Profit for the year FERA - - 54,864 54,864
Transactions with owner HBEEAZRS
Dividends declared to the shareholders BEEkKREBHATIREZKRE
of the Company - - (88,016) (88,016)
Share option scheme FERHERE
— value of services provided (Note 10)  —EBRMHARFEAEE (H5E10) - 38,686 - 38,686
Balance at 31 December 2019 WZE—hE
+ZR=+—HzZ&8% 1,274,530 119,859 6,996 1,401,385
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 is set out below:

36

BEENERED (EEATER (B
622%) 5538361 27 (WEBEEF
HER) RE (56226E) hEH L
TR AR E R E)

() EFRITHHEHME
REE-_S -SSR -_S—NE+=
B=+—HBLEEE FxREAKEF

RATE AR BB E 50T -

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HEZZ_EE+-P=t+-HLEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES FRAsLAAANEATEY RECHIRLNHE

Emoluments
paid o
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated  contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa inrespectof of the
of other retirement accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
HESER
EYASE:S
HEAFEH
At EH ARRES E:)-
HEREE EEHERK BHEfY e
fig #t HTeA EEBZH (W) BRsHEMES T fEEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Name iz FEn F#n TEr TEn FEn FEn T#n TEn F#r
Executive Directors HnE%
Nie Guoming (Chaiman) EEA R 1620 1,290 4,400 - 514 65 - - 7889
Lu Jie (Chief recutive Offcer) EA RS 1,680 3538 7,800 - 5,659 90 - - 18,767
Li Wenjin IXE 1,620 - 6,800 - 5,659 18 - - 14,007
4920 4828 19,000 - 11832 1 - - 40,753
Independent Non-Executive BUkaTES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming ERH 20 - 300 - - - - - 520
Wu Min 2 0 - 300 - - - - - 520
Man Kok Kuen, Charles ek 20 - 300 - - - - - 520
660 - 900 - - - - - 1,560
Total EE 5,580 4,828 19,900 - 1832 13 - - 2313
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EFNEhED (FAQTER 5B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 5538361 27 (WEBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. HER) RE (56226GE) hE#H L
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION mRARENEE) @

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EFRITBAERME @
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HEIZ-NETZR=+-HIEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking

HEAEEES FRAARIENRARDEY) BECIARNDHE

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
In respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa in respect of of the
of other retirement accepting Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme as director undertaking Total
HEEER
FAFHE
HBLEEH
R 580 HERE: E: k)
EHELER EXHEHE e BHBEAE
e it |2 BEEY (W) BREED Pl fele E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Name #4 TEn TR TET TEL Tén TER TER TEL Tén
Executive Directors HE%
Nie Guoming (Chairman) 208 (2R 1,620 908 3,200 - 513 48 - - 6,289
Lu e (Chie Evecutive Officer) ER(ER) 1,680 3,085 4,700 - 5,642 9 - - 15,199
Li Wenjin ZXE 1620 - 4,000 - 5,642 18 - - 11,280
4920 3993 11,900 - 1,797 158 - - 32,768
Independent Non-Executive BUkYnES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming ER5 20 - 250 - - - - - 470
Wu Min &Y byl - 250 - - - - - a0
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles Ve 20 - 250 - - - - - 470
660 - 750 - - - - - 1410
Total &3t 5,580 3993 12,650 - 1,797 158 - - 34178
Note (a): Other benefits include leave pay, share options and Misk(a): EMFlmEiEZiHm BRER
insurance premium. IREBE R e
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36 EFMERED (FEATERG B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 5538361 27 (WEBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. HER) RE (56226E) hEH L
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION mRARENEE) @

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b) EFHRKEF
FRBEESCWEERWEE
IR EN (CE-—NE 8 -

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits (0 EELKIEREREF
None of the directors received or will receive any termination FROBRESREE H&HX_EH—J Y B 1
benefits during the year (2019: Nil). AR ILEREEN (CE—hF | o
(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making (d) MELESRFBRE=FRMEDN
available directors’ services rE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company BHE_ZTHFF+_A=+—HIE

FE FARHMEMIFHESTRS
MEFE=AXHTAE (ZT—-A
FiE|E o

did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other () BRAMUES STEHEZABEBRZ
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies SEENHBERBRAZEANE
corporate by and connected entities with such P EERREMZZHER
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no BE_Z-ZEF+-A=+—HI1t
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour FE - BERABMUES ZEHE
of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and Alﬂa&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ’] R ERAS

connected entities with such directors (2019: Nil). AE’J% CEBRREMRZTHE
—NE ) e
(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, ) ZEENRS -THRESUNPHEK

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2019:
Nil).

$-u- 3L

FRABBMEBEREEBITLEARTR
HpsI A RN RABEFEHZUME
BREAEAEaMNFRNFARME
BRBENAFTENERRZ 25
HEHN (CTE-NEFE |-

BRRERARAT —TTEER 184



Five Years Financial Summary
AFPRBEHE

A summary of the published consolidated results and of the WEEKEXPHEREALBERBREHR DL
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial MZEEEBEREFBREEEAGESEER
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified 4R EEEHBEHMEWNT :

as appropriate, is set as below:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZBITE ZT-hFE ZZ-N\F Z—tHF Z—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FAET
Results E 5 |
Revenue WA 5,650,619 4,925,733 4,415,409 3,591,080 2,914,842
Gross profit EH] 2,337,309 1,944,833 1,626,681 1,457,593 1,261,994
Operating profit =il 1,067,172 761,626 639,269 428,023 689,093
Profit for the year attributable to Ei/NSIESY=DN
the owners of the Company FEILEERR 900,123 623,873 522,470 407,507 600,908
Financial position BN
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEMLE 7,637,059 6,719,223 5,775,554 5,232,216 4,433,063
Total liabilities BB 2,063,487 1,979,871 1,562,946 1,335,150 931,780
Capital and reserves AT
Total equity gt 5,573,572 4,739,352 4,212,608 3,897,066 3,501,283
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